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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I want to

          3  apologize to everyone for the delay this morning.

          4  Thank you for your patience. We will get right to

          5  work. First, I want to give credit where credit is

          6  due and we'll hear from Gail Brewer in just a

          7  moment. But Gail has really been a driving force not

          8  only on this legislation that we're discussing

          9  today, but on a range of issues related to human and

         10  civil rights. I really want to thank her for the

         11  leadership she has provided in this Council.

         12                 I just want to make a very simple

         13  opening statement. We are living in a difficult

         14  time. That is not a surprise to anyone. We once upon

         15  a time used to think that the Federal level might be

         16  our best guarantor of human and civil rights. I

         17  think that train has left the station and we are now

         18  recognizing the fact that we cannot necessarily

         19  depend on the Federal government to play the role it

         20  once did. We certainly know that in many states and

         21  localities around our country, the situation is

         22  unfortunately less tolerant than it used to be.

         23                 There are wonderfully some excellent

         24  exceptions to that in the sense that there are more

         25  and more localities and states around the country
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          2  that have done some ground breaking work. I think

          3  it's fair to say that in this era, it is incumbent

          4  upon New York City to protect its own vision of what

          5  human rights and civil rights are and to provide

          6  leadership for the whole country. We have

          7  historically in 1957 in terms of passing one of the

          8  strongest and earliest fair housing laws. We were

          9  obviously in the fore front in terms avoiding

         10  discrimination based on sexual orientation. The 1991

         11  revamping of the Human Rights Law also put us in the

         12  vanguard of the country. I think, in so many areas,

         13  New York City has a very proud history of an

         14  activist approach to human and civil rights. But

         15  that only is so if we keep moving with the times and

         16  improving upon the work and that's why this

         17  legislation is before us today.

         18                 In my opinion, it's an effort to make

         19  sure that we are consistent with the original goals

         20  of our human rights legislation; to make sure we are

         21  implementing our human rights legislation

         22  consistently and in an activist manner and in some

         23  ways, to close some loop holes that have occurred in

         24  practice and I think that's what the legislative

         25  process is suppose to be about. Looking for what
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          2  happens in practice and constantly refining and

          3  improving the situation. We look forward to some

          4  very important testimony today. Before we get

          5  started, I'd like to turn it over my colleague, Gail

          6  Brewer, the sponsor of the bill.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          8  much. It's a mutual admiration society because I

          9  have also great respect for the Chair DeBlasio, and

         10  I thank him for putting this on the agenda. This is,

         11  I think, the second or third hearing, but the

         12  hearing that is part of the City Council that

         13  started in January of this year and we all

         14  reintroduced bills. So it's now the Local Civil

         15  Rights Restoration Act. As Bill DeBlasio indicated,

         16  one of the reasons that it is so important to pass

         17  this bill is that the City Human Rights Law often

         18  has stronger civil rights protection since State or

         19  Federal law.

         20                 This particular bill would clarify

         21  the City's intentions that the City Human Rights Law

         22  be independently interpreted so that State and

         23  Federal law is a minimum level of civil rights

         24  protection and the City's protections may be

         25  stronger. That's a very good reason to pass this
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          2  law. I also want to thank Craig Gurian and the Anti-

          3  Discrimination Center of Metro New York because he

          4  has obviously thought about this issue for a long

          5  time, but has also recently worked with many

          6  different legal defense funds and also just groups

          7  like American Jewish Community and others who think

          8  deeply about these issues. I know because I've

          9  spoken to some of these groups, people have gone

         10  back into committee, analyze the tacts and then come

         11  out with their support.

         12                 This has been a very long process,

         13  but an important process. I wish I could think of

         14  some very high level front page topics, but I'm

         15  always one for coming up with the topics that are

         16  not. And this is a perfect example, but it's an

         17  example of where hard work pays off. Unfortunately,

         18  when we talk about our civil rights, it's things

         19  like marital status, protection against retaliation,

         20  attorney's fees in cases where a policy changes

         21  enacted regardless of trial status and of course

         22  thinking about Federal and State law and how they

         23  impact us locally.

         24                 These are some of the topics that

         25  this bill addresses. We're hear more specifically,
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          2  but in marital status this bill would require that

          3  neither marital status nor lack thereof be used to

          4  discriminate against someone and, of course, in my

          5  position the Council Member on the west side,

          6  housing, rental units is a perfect example where

          7  this is something that we have to take into

          8  consideration. Discrimination comes up in rental

          9  units, unfortunately, more than we wish. It means

         10  you can't discriminate, for example, against a

         11  couple for being married or for not being married.

         12  That's what this bill would call for.

         13                 It also calls for protection against

         14  retaliation. Any retaliatory action whatsoever is

         15  illegal under this bill and the scope of the

         16  retaliation will only be used to determine the

         17  damages to be awarded. On attorney's fees right now,

         18  legal fees can only be collected if there is a

         19  finding of probable cause in a case. This Intro 22

         20  would change the law so that any case in which

         21  policy changes are enacted will be eligible for

         22  attorney's fees. These are some of the provisions of

         23  this pending legislation. We look forward to your

         24  testimony. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you. I'd
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          2  also like to welcome our colleagues, Larry Seabrook

          3  and Annabel Palma, two activists members of this

          4  committee. And I want to welcome and thank our

          5  counsel, Jackie Sherman for her work in preparing

          6  this hearing and all of the other City Council staff

          7  who worked to get this hearing ready. Just a quick

          8  word on ground rules. We have a little unusual

          9  situation today because of timing issues, Human

         10  Rights Commission will be testifying in the

         11  neighborhood of 12:00 noon. Is that right, Jackie?

         12  So what we're going to do is as we always do with

         13  the Administration, afford them an open ended time

         14  window to give their testimony because there is

         15  usually quite a bit of Q&A from the members.

         16                 In light of the large number of

         17  people who would like to testify today, I'd like to

         18  propose that for the first witness panel, Craig

         19  Gurian and Andy Jorgensen, I'd like to give them

         20  each five minutes. Craig, has played obviously a

         21  very leading role in this legislation. I'm sure we

         22  have a number of questions for both of them. Then

         23  with subsequent panels, I'd like to ask each witness

         24  to summarize your written testimony in three

         25  minutes. Again, there will be additional Q&A.
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          2                 All written testimony goes into the

          3  record. But what I have found consistently over

          4  three years of chairing this is that the written

          5  testimony has less impact on the members in terms of

          6  their learning process than the verbal summation. I

          7  would urge everyone to recognize that we can be

          8  effective that way.

          9                 Let's call the first panel, Craig

         10  Gurian and Andy Jorgensen. Welcome, Craig and thank

         11  you again. We know you've worked very, very hard on

         12  this legislation and human rights issues for many

         13  years. Let me say, formally that we appreciate it.

         14  We look forward to your testimony.

         15                 MR. GURIAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman

         16  and thanks to Council Members Brewer and Palma and

         17  Seabrook for being here today and joining us. I'm

         18  actually going to defer to Mr. Jorgensen to begin.

         19  Someone for whom one of the changes in the law, the

         20  marital status provision has a very direct impact.

         21                 MR. JORGENSEN: Thank you. Thank you

         22  for allowing me to come in to tell you a little bit

         23  about what happened to us.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Sure.

         25                 MR. JORGENSEN: My name is Andrew
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          2  Jorgensen. I live on the upper west side. I've been

          3  a New York resident all my life. Fortunate enough,

          4  I've been employed throughout the recession and I've

          5  got a very good job and so does my girlfriend, Lisa.

          6  As you can imagine, housing market here is very

          7  tight. We searched for a place to buy for close to a

          8  year. Last year, we found a place that was great. It

          9  was the place of our dreams. We fell in love with

         10  it. We wanted to buy it.

         11                 We went into contract with this as a

         12  couple. We secured our loan, mortgage commitment as

         13  a couple. We applied to the co- op as a couple to

         14  buy this apartment. The co- op in evaluating us,

         15  brought us in for interviews and the entire process,

         16  they were satisfied that Lisa could afford the

         17  apartment simply by herself. If we had been married,

         18  that would not be a problem. They decided that she

         19  could be the shareholder and the lessee. But I could

         20  not because we were not a married couple. I was sort

         21  of put into this second class category of an

         22  occupant within the building and wouldn't have any

         23  of the rights to the apartment that I paid for and

         24  was committed to keeping up.

         25                 In other words, if we had married, we
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          2  were basically being given different rights than our

          3  unmarried status. There is really no good reason for

          4  what the co- op did. We're able to afford the co- op

          5  financially. There is no problem there. Otherwise,

          6  they wouldn't even brought us in for the interview.

          7  The obligations that we would have had to co- op

          8  would have been the same regardless of our marital

          9  status. When this first happened to us, the timing

         10  of it wasn't exactly perfect, but I'll go into that

         11  later, I originally thought this was a clear cut

         12  case of discrimination. There was no good reason

         13  other than prejudice or mind set that was allowing

         14  this happen. Because of the way the court ruling

         15  stand at this point, we were not able to go in and

         16  argue that this was intentional discrimination based

         17  on our marital status.

         18                 From our side and this is probably

         19  the emotional side, prices have gone up

         20  significantly in the last year and it's made it more

         21  difficult to find a place. Emotionally, we are both

         22  in your social circles. You tell people that you're

         23  buying an apartment and when that doesn't

         24  materialize, people ask why. So it was emotionally

         25   -- it impacted us. Because we're almost embarrassed
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          2  to tell people why we were denied. We were also

          3  notified with less than 48 hours before the closing

          4  date. We're in a situation where all our stuff was

          5  in boxes. We had to move because our lease was up.

          6  We found ourself with no place to go.

          7                 If we weren't able to afford the

          8  apartment, none of this would have happened. We

          9  would have been denied and we would have gone on and

         10  found the next place. But we weren't being judged on

         11  our finances. We were clearly just being judged on

         12  whether or not we were a married couple. In some

         13  rate, it just felt that this is discrimination on

         14  the basis of marital status and the reason we

         15  contacted Craig was because we didn't want this to

         16  happen to anybody else. We felt that it was an

         17  injustice and it should be treated as such. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 MR. GURIAN: As you know from the last

         20  hearing and discussions more recently, the

         21  Administration has opposed this bill including the

         22  clarification to the marital status provision that

         23  Andy just talked about. I was thinking about the

         24  Administration's position from last time and their

         25  testimony last time perhaps we'll be surprised later
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          2  today. I don't know. I would have to say it sounded

          3  suspiciously like listening to President Bush talk

          4  about Iraq. Everything is fine. Just trust us It's

          5  going to be okay and it's really time I think for

          6  all of us to have a reality check.

          7                 I just think back on some recent

          8  history. Equal benefits bill. The Administration

          9  opposed it. The school anti- harassment act. The

         10  Administration opposed it and the Mayor was quoted

         11  in the paper as describing it as silly to do

         12  something where you're not just leaving it up to the

         13  professionals. Intro 22, the local Civil Right

         14  Restoration Act, the Administration opposes it. I

         15  think we have a pattern here. It used to be that

         16  civil rights opponents would be more straight

         17  forward. They'd say, we prefer fewer protections.

         18  Now the line is that more protections would be

         19  unnecessary or that they somehow be harmful. Let's

         20  be clear. There are always going to be those who are

         21  incline to discriminate. If the fight against

         22  discrimination doesn't move forward, it's going to

         23  be moving backward and moving the fight forward is

         24  why we need Intro 22.

         25                 I have submitted written comments. I
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          2  won't recite them to you here. I have been asked by

          3  Cesar Perales, the President of the Puerto Rican

          4  Legal Defense and Education Fund to read a very

          5  brief letter. Dear Chairman DeBlasio: Prior

          6  scheduling commitments have made it impossible for

          7  me to attend today's hearing on Intro. 22, but I

          8  wanted to make sure to convey to you and to the

          9  Committee PRLDEF's strong commitment to seeing this

         10  bill enacted.

         11                 As you know, we do a lot of civil

         12  rights work on the federal level on behalf of the

         13  Latino community. We see every day that this

         14  environment has become much more difficult to fight

         15  for our clients' civil rights than it used to be and

         16  the prospects are that progress at the federal level

         17  will remain difficult.

         18                 On the local level, by contrast, we

         19  have the opportunity to make real headway in

         20  securing stronger and more robust tools with which

         21  to fight for civil rights. Intro. 22 is a model for

         22  this type of local effort, and we hope and trust

         23  that you will lead the fight to enact it into law.

         24  Signed, Cesar Perales. And I will hand this up.

         25  You'll hear from a variety of witnesses today about
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          2  why Intro 22 will help in a variety of ways

          3  including some that may make some headlines like the

          4  fight against sexual harassment and fight against

          5  disability discrimination and how it will assist

          6  victims of discrimination to secure counsel to fight

          7  for their rights.

          8                 Let me begin with a different

          9  illustration of how courts and this is a very

         10  specific one, of how courts have by interpreting the

         11  City Human Rights Law just as though it were like

         12  State law really undercut the protections that this

         13  Council has intended to set out for the residents of

         14  the City of New York. Until 1991, there hadn't been

         15  any civil rights laws that prohibited individuals

         16  from discriminating. Individuals were not held

         17  responsible for their own discriminatory conduct in

         18  the work place. On the New York City Humans Right

         19  level before the comprehensive 1991 amendments, it

         20  was only unlawful for an employer to discriminate.

         21                 As part of the comprehensive '91

         22  amendment, the Council added to those who would be

         23  liable. You have the same for an employer language

         24  and then something else was added. It wasn't added

         25  because it was thought that the bill was too short
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          2  and that the Human Rights Law needed to have a few

          3  more fluffy words for an employer or an employee or

          4  agent, thereof, to discriminate. There could not

          5  have been a clearer signal that individuals were now

          6  liable and indeed and Mayor Dinkins said and I

          7  quote, "the new law takes the fundamental step of

          8  making all people legally responsible for their own

          9  discriminatory conduct. If you do it, you're

         10  responsible for it." And this wasn't controversial,

         11  it was stronger than State law. It was stronger than

         12  Title 7. But it wasn't controversial until last year

         13  when a State Appellate Court, a panel of the First

         14  Department, actually said that the City Human Rights

         15  Law couldn't really mean what it said. Because it

         16  was broadening liability too much.

         17                 Instead of engaging in what the court

         18  was suppose to do which is liberally interpreting

         19  the law to accomplish its purposes, the court

         20  literally invented legislative history to justify a

         21  narrow result. The court claimed that what the

         22  Council was really doing was just substituting words

         23  for what was in the State Human Rights Law having to

         24  do with licensing agencies. I was very, very

         25  confused when I saw this decision that came out. Now
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          2  it is true that the basic employment discrimination

          3  provision in the State Humans Rights Law had the

          4  provision that the court was talking about. That

          5  employers and licensing agencies can't do a variety

          6  of things, but City law was different. As the chart

          7  shows, prior to the 1991 amendment which is that top

          8  line, the provisions about licensing agencies were

          9  totally separate from the basic provisions. So what

         10  you had was a circumstance where all the City's

         11  provisions about employment discrimination -- you

         12  didn't need me to drop the cups.

         13                 You have the basic provisions about

         14  employment discrimination in one section. You have

         15  provisions about licensing agencies in a different

         16  section. Then we have the '91 amendments to the law

         17  which made lots of changes. The basic provision

         18  added individual liability. The licensing agency

         19  provisions were moved, but they were moved into a

         20  completely different section. There was no

         21  substitution. This is not like an ideological issue.

         22  We think one thing is better. The court just made it

         23  up. There had been no substitution. What that

         24  Appellate Court was doing was engaging in a very,

         25  very common reflex which was thinking of the City
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          2  Human Rights Law as just being State or Federal

          3  Civil Rights Law by another name. That's precisely

          4  the kind of thing that Intro 22 squarely prohibits.

          5                 I wanted to talk just for a moment

          6  about racial and ethnic discrimination in housing.

          7  Because despite the cheery picture that I think

          8  you're going to hear later today, the eight county

          9  New York metropolitan area, the five boroughs of New

         10  York and the three northern counties is the most

         11  segregated major metropolitan area in the United

         12  States. For Latino's, the eighth most segregated,

         13  for African Americans, a major demographic research

         14  center, the Mumford Center has found that indices of

         15  black, white segregation in New York City remain

         16  very high. There was actually another study that was

         17  done about New York City. It turns out that in 2000,

         18  New York City was more residentially segregated than

         19  it was in 1910. That's not good.

         20                 We can fight housing discrimination

         21  by testing for it, by making sure that people are

         22  held to their own anti- discrimination obligations

         23  and by prohibiting housing decisions that are even

         24  partially tainted by race discrimination, but only

         25  if City law is kept independent from State or
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          2  Federal law that has either shrink already or is

          3  about to shrink. Fair housing attorneys and I mean

          4  this literally, is like at the last conference I was

          5  at, live in fear of what the Supreme Court is going

          6  to do next in this area and actively discourage

          7  cases from going up to that court.

          8                 Under a 20 year old precedent, for

          9  example, a tester, who works for a Fair Housing

         10  Organization is giving standing to bring a case to

         11  challenge a discriminatory practice. That tester

         12  standing is very, very important. Because lots of

         13  times, ordinary people who have been discriminated

         14  against don't know it. It's invisible. You don't

         15  know about the apartment you haven't been told

         16  about. You don't know if you've been steered away

         17  from a particular neighborhood. So testing is very,

         18  very important. But there is widespread concern that

         19  this Supreme Court very different from the Supreme

         20  Court 20 or 25 years ago is going to cut back on

         21  that standing when it next gets a case.

         22                 The Supreme Court last term has

         23  already cut into a long- term fair housing

         24  principal. It had been the law and certainly was in

         25   '91 when the City Human Rights Law was overhauled
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          2  that the duty not to discriminate was what was

          3  called non- delegable. That is the owner of a real-

          4  estate corporation could not avid responsibility

          5  when a broker discriminated. The Supreme Court last

          6  term decided to eliminate that principal. Finally,

          7  the City Human Rights Law made clear in 1991 that

          8  discrimination is not suppose to play a role. It

          9  should not play any role in the decisions that are

         10  covered by the law; housing, employment, public

         11  accommodations. So that whenever there's an

         12  illegitimate motive, even when there's a bunch of

         13  motives mixed together, that illegitimate motive

         14  will mean that the act is declared unlawful.

         15                 In contrast, there is an existing

         16  second circuit federal case that is less protective

         17  on precisely this question. As others will describe

         18  to you in connection with other issues, Federal cut

         19  backs should not mean local cut backs and State cut

         20  backs, a majority of the state court of appeals has

         21  now been appointed by Governor Pataki. That's not

         22  talked about a lot. The concern about the United

         23  States Supreme Court is there, but it's the same

         24  issue on the State level and Intro 22 would protect

         25  us against both of those problems. I hope we can get
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          2  this bill passed and if you have any questions, I'd

          3  be happy to address them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you very

          5  much for both of your testimonies. Let me see first

          6  of all if my colleagues have any questions. Annabel

          7  Palma. All right, Annabel or Larry. Annabel,

          8  asserting her rights. Annabel Palma.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair. Craig, in view of all terms, how would this

         11  bill affect or protect everyday workers in the work

         12  place?

         13                 MR. GURIAN: There are a number of

         14  ways. There will be a variety of speakers talking to

         15  that question. I'll just give you a couple of

         16  examples. Everyday workers are sexually harassed

         17  everyday. And the standard that has developed in

         18  those cases in effect has judges saying, sorry, I

         19  know you've been harassed, but you haven't been

         20  harassed enough. Go away. What this bill does is

         21  open things up for civil rights advocates, women

         22  rights advocates to say under the City Human Rights

         23  Law, there is suppose to be a different standard.

         24  Whenever you've been sexually harassed, that's

         25  illegal and it's a separate question exactly how
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          2  much you've been damage.

          3                 Take the circumstance of an everyday

          4  worker who wants to be able to bring a case. Right

          5  now, you go to the City Human Rights Commission,

          6  there is a moral obligation to conduct a thorough

          7  investigation, but there's not a legal obligation to

          8  conduct a thorough investigation. You want to have a

          9  lawyer. A lot of these cases don't result in big

         10  dollar damages. There is no provision at the

         11  Administrative level to be able to get an attorney

         12  and have that attorney get attorney fees. There are

         13  a couple of ways in which this bill very concretely

         14  will help people in an everyday way.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: I asked that

         16  question because I've spent a few years with 1199

         17  doing health and safety work. A lot of my work was

         18  going around the City and the State doing sexual

         19  harassment training inside the work place and try to

         20  work with management to bring in some real policies

         21  to protect victims against sexual harassment. And

         22  what we used to find out during the investigations

         23  was a lot of the victims felt victimized twice.

         24  Therefore, just giving up and not wanting to pursue

         25  their cases and ended up just either resigning or
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          2  leaving the work place just not to deal with the

          3  retaliation that you succumb behind finding out a

          4  sexual harassment.

          5                 MR. GURIAN: It's interesting that you

          6  say that. Because when you hear the cheery news from

          7  the Mayor's Management Report later day, there is

          8  one item, at least one item that may be missing. It

          9  turns out that with 311 and everything, this last

         10  fiscal year (this is not the sexual harassment), but

         11  housing and employment, all the human rights

         12  complaints that came in, over 3,000 and yet, there

         13  were fewer, slightly fewer than 500 complaints

         14  filed. What happened to all of those other people?

         15  What happened to the people who didn't even bother

         16  to pick up the telephone because they have a sense

         17  that courts are just not going to be sympathetic to

         18  these kinds of claims.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Council Member

         21  Seabrook.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         23  very much, Mr. Chairman. I certainly want to commend

         24  the sponsor of this legislation, Councilwoman Gail

         25  Brewer, but I also want to commend this panel for
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          2  highlighting some of the important issues and

          3  talking about the need for strengthening the

          4  Administrative Code of the City of New York as it

          5  relates to human rights. I think that it's important

          6  that this is a subject that we talk less about and

          7  it is probably the most serious subject that

          8  governors this City and this nation. When we can see

          9  that New York City, not only is it the most

         10  segregated as in terms of housing and job

         11  discrimination, but it has the most segregated

         12  school system which base a lot on housing which is

         13  worse than some southern states during the civil

         14  rights era.

         15                 I would hope that the Mayor would

         16  really look at this as a means of rectifying faults

         17  within the City and talking about what this State's

         18  constitution intent was and to deliver on the

         19  promise of people having those rights, marital

         20  rights and non- marital rights should be dealt with

         21  on the basis of civil rights. I must commend all of

         22  you for the work that you've done and the courageous

         23  stance that you're taking and let's continue to make

         24  this happen.

         25                 MR. GURIAN: Thank you Councilman.
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          2  Sir, the extraordinary thing in this area is that

          3  there are so many important pieces of the City's

          4  business where the Council's hands are tied. You

          5  want to do something about rent regulation, go to

          6  Albany. You want to decide what the tax rate is

          7  going to be and who is burdened or have a commuter

          8  tax, ask Albany. You want to figure out how those of

          9  us who need public housing and assisted housing are

         10  going to be able to afford it, you have to try to

         11  convince the Bush Administration not to do what was

         12  announced in the paper today, cut back on the

         13  formula for what fair market rent is.

         14                 This is one area where this is

         15  absolutely no dispute whatsoever that this Council

         16  has the power to act. There is nothing that would

         17  stop this Council and the 37 members who have co-

         18  sponsored this bill from enacting this into law and

         19  making it an effective, a more effective Civil

         20  Rights Law here and a model for the rest of the

         21  country.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Council Member

         23  Gail Brewer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Very quickly

         25  Craig, because I know that you covered some of this,
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          2  but the Administration will testify later I know due

          3  to scheduling conflicts earlier, and are there some

          4  comments that you predict that they might make based

          5  on some of the past. I know that last time there was

          6  a discussion regarding the testing that they are

          7  doing quite a bit, et cetera. Are there just some

          8  brief comments you might make in anticipation?

          9                 MR. GURIAN: Sure. I think I will sort

         10  of leave aside some of how the Commission is doing

         11  for an oversight on the commission. It's not

         12  difficult to make a prediction because the

         13  Commission came to this body last time out and up

         14  and down the line opposed each and every section of

         15  the bill. I just speak to a couple of what I think

         16  are entirely misguided propositions that the

         17  Administration has put forward. They've said that we

         18  want to be able to look to Federal law. We don't

         19  have local case law. It would be too confusing

         20  somehow to have local standards. That's false.

         21                 Federal law explicitly contemplates

         22  that it is a floor below which local law cannot

         23  fall. This is not something that is just an idea

         24  that the City Council has cooked up. Title 7 says,

         25  nothing in this title shall be deemed to exempt or
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          2  relieve any person from any liability, duty, et

          3  cetera, provided by any present or future law of any

          4  state or political subdivision. The idea was that

          5  Federal was suppose to be the basis and that State

          6  and local could be stronger. The Fair Housing Act

          7  has the same provision.

          8                 The development of standards under

          9  local law is not more complicated than the

         10  development of any case law and the focus simply

         11  needs to be on independently construing the local

         12  law to achieve its broad anti- discrimination

         13  purposes. It doesn't stop you from using Federal law

         14  as an aide and interpretation, but you need to keep

         15  your eyes on the prize. There is no problem in

         16  practice. Juries are commonly asked questions to

         17  resolve two different statutes with different

         18  standards. But you need to really know what the

         19  purpose is behind the Administration's position.

         20  They know that Federal and State statutes continue

         21  to be cut back. The inevitable consequence, this is

         22  not guess work, the inevitable consequence of

         23  linking City Human Rights Law to its State and

         24  Federal counterparts which is contrary to what the

         25  Council intended to do will be to see local
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          2  protections watered down or eliminated.

          3                 Just very briefly on marital status,

          4  last time the Administration took the position that

          5  someone like Mr. Jorgensen and his partner were

          6  already protected. They just have not read the State

          7  Court of Appeals decision. The State Court of

          8  Appeals ruled that the law as it exists does not

          9  protect couples in relation to one another. Just the

         10  situation where a landlord doesn't want unmarried

         11  people regardless of whether they're living with

         12  someone or not. It sounds bizarre. It is bizarre.

         13  But that's what the Court of Appeals has done and

         14  that's what needs to be undone.

         15                 This one final thing on the caps on

         16  civil penalties. This Administration is very much

         17  opposed to the idea of punishing seriously those who

         18  discriminate. Back in 1991, when this Council first

         19  enacted civil penalties, the Mayor said, we had a

         20  ridiculous situation. You could be fined if you

         21  litter or if you double parked, but not if you

         22  discriminate. This kind of penalty could be a real

         23  deterrent and the civil penalties go into the City's

         24  general fund. That is the Human Rights Commission

         25  could be in part a revenue generating agency.
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          2                 This particular Commission and in the

          3  previous Administration hasn't gone after civil

          4  penalties. But we have another problem. And the

          5  problem is the caps. Just by the operation of

          6  inflation over the last 13 years, the caps that the

          7  Council put in have been reduced in value by 30 or

          8  40 percent. And our experience has shown that these

          9  caps are too low. The worst that can be done to any

         10  defendant is a civil penalty administratively of

         11  $100,000. How can that possibly be enough to punish

         12  a large business who has maliciously discriminated?

         13  We've seen a court devalue in award of damages in a

         14  brutal AIDS discrimination case. This was from some

         15  years ago where the Commission had awarded $75,000.

         16  They cut that down to $25,000 because it wasn't such

         17  a big landlord. We can't be having the deterrent of

         18  that racheting down and that's why the caps need to

         19  be raised and that's why the bills provision is a

         20  good start.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you,

         22  Gail. A couple of quick questions. First, let me

         23  welcome Council Member Bill Perkins. Craig, I'm

         24  still a little confused following the dialogue you

         25  just had with Gail. I hear and I couldn't agree more
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          2  the idea, particularly this day in age, of the

          3  Federal or State law is not expansive. I'm not a

          4  lawyer, so I'm just going to use layman's terms. It

          5  is not expansive and needs to be considered a floor

          6  and obviously the City law is more detailed, more

          7  rigorous, if that's what any judge or anybody should

          8  look to.

          9                 I guess I'm a little concerned, is

         10  there any kind of universal standard at work here?

         11  Because I don't understand all the history, but I do

         12  know that there is a probably a lot more in the

         13  legal body of the history in different cases and

         14  precedents and all to look at, at the State and

         15  Federal level. How does a judge determine sort of

         16  what standard are they working from? Not what law

         17  are they going to, but what standard are they

         18  working from or what defines discrimination?

         19                 MR. GURIAN: Well, it really depends

         20  on what question they're answering. If the question

         21  they're answering is, how have other courts done it

         22  before, they will tend to look in a book and see

         23  what a State or Federal judge has done. That is the

         24  improper question under the City Human Rights Law.

         25  As the City Human Rights Law exists now, the
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          2  requirement is that the law is suppose to be

          3  liberally construed to accomplish its purposes and

          4  all of these cases don't do that. How do you put

          5  meat on those bones? And you have to think about how

          6  broad are the purposes. Do we really want to be

          7  serious about fighting discrimination? And if we

          8  are, I think there are really four principals that

          9  you would look at to have judges consider is this a

         10  broad standard enough or how do you work it?

         11                 Number one, the principal of

         12  maximizing deterrence. It reflects in understanding

         13  that traditional methods and principals of law

         14  enforcement are and ought to be used in the civil

         15  rights context. Just as cities don't rely on saying,

         16  pretty please to stop people from engaging in

         17  robbery, so to a City can't rely on universal good

         18  will. So the first principal of liberal construction

         19  is maximize deterrence.

         20                 The second principal is maximize

         21  coverage. Discrimination is not suppose to play a

         22  role in any of these decisions and the zone in which

         23  discrimination should be practiced or can be

         24  practiced should be strictly limited. These things

         25  are guidelines which would let a court know you're
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          2  suppose to let people come into court. Third,

          3  minimize evasion. Resist attempts to feign ignorance

          4  of the requirements of the law, or to otherwise

          5  engage in diversionary legal tactics. Our business

          6  really wasn't set up in a way that we're covered. I

          7  was only the temporary employer and I had somebody

          8  else to do it.

          9                 You  maximize coverage. You maximize

         10  deterrence. You minimize evasion and finally you

         11  always compensate victims of discrimination fully.

         12  You recognize that a discrimination injury is a

         13  serious injury. These may sound like very basic

         14  things. I think they are very basic things. But the

         15  court's have not taken the step one, of looking how

         16  to interpret the law liberally to accomplish its

         17  purposes. They haven't maximized coverage. They

         18  haven't maximized deterrence. They haven't minimize

         19  evasion. And they haven't compensated and the

         20  Administrative agency hasn't compensated victims of

         21  discrimination fully. They are 0 for 5. The text of

         22  the bill and the appropriate legislative history

         23  would set them, I think, on the right path to doing

         24  that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Again, this is
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          2  a layman's question. What if in the testimony today,

          3  we are asking the same question and basically the

          4  Administration answer is well, we don't think given

          5  the way the legal system works that the City law has

          6  that much reach or that much power. Again, not the

          7  more passive question of what's the default position

          8  and the default should be the most rigorous and the

          9  most local level, but a more difficult question of

         10  the definition of discrimination the kind of very

         11  far reaching. I agree with everything you say and I

         12  think it should be far reaching. But the very far

         13  reaching definition you give, if the City says in a

         14  perfect world that's great, but in the reality of

         15  how the legal system works and the importance of

         16  precedent and all, that's just not realistic and no

         17  City law can change that. What would you say?

         18                 MR. GURIAN: I'll give you a layman's

         19  answer. They don't have the faintest idea what

         20  they're talking about. In fact --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I understood

         22  that.

         23                 MR. GURIAN: -- There is nothing

         24  magical about precedent. The whole idea of a City

         25  law being independent and by the way, there is no
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          2  disagreement about the Council's authority.

          3  Sometimes the Council will pass a bill. The

          4  Administration will disagree with it and say, and

          5  we're not going to enforce or we're going to take

          6  you into court. There's no disagreement that the

          7  City law can be independent and so, it's not any

          8  different from what any judge does when any Civil

          9  Rights Law has gotten started. There has been

         10  provisions of the law that have been added over

         11  time.

         12                 The disability protections in the

         13  law, for example, that existed as of 1991, didn't

         14  exist before that. They were broader than Federal

         15  law and courts have managed to understand some of

         16  them. It's the same thing that any judge would do.

         17  What's interesting about the City Human Rights

         18  Commission position is that it had been intended

         19  that the administrative decisions of that body would

         20  begin to develop a body of local case law. It hasn't

         21  happened because they haven't tried more than one or

         22  two cases a year. It's simply false that they have

         23  to rely on something else that's out there.

         24                 I'll give one more very quick

         25  example. Sometimes there are illustrations that are
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          2  out there where Federal courts have decided things

          3  more or less broadly. And they have a perfect

          4  opportunity to say, the broader Federal

          5  interpretation is the one that solves the City Human

          6  Right Laws intents.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Craig, one

          8  other quick question. We again looking ahead to the

          9  Administration, we think that they're going to have

         10  some concerns about wording, I believe, that's in

         11  Section five of the bill where the word "thorough"

         12  is used. Bear with me. I believe in thorough

         13  investigations and rigor and thoroughness and from

         14  my layman's perspective, I don't find it the most

         15  threatening word I've heard today. But I understand

         16  from sort of an administrative level, they may have

         17  some differences. I want to just preempt that

         18  discussion a little here by saying to you if they

         19  say, well, thorough is too hard to define and there

         20  is no independent definition and there's no

         21  oversight entity that can review in each case and

         22  which again, I'm not sure why there shouldn't be.

         23  What would you say?

         24                 MR. GURIAN: Well, I'd first pause for

         25  a minute and think very soberly that the entity
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          2  administratively charged within enforcing the law is

          3  really saying that having thorough investigations is

          4  too much of a burden. But more specifically, this is

          5  really a first step, a minimum step. It doesn't mean

          6  that you have to do the same kind of investigation

          7  in every case. If somebody comes in and says I've

          8  been discriminated against because I'm from Mars and

          9  my landlord doesn't like people from Mars and you

         10  don't have to be subpoenaing witnesses all over the

         11  place unless, of course, there is some solid

         12  documentary evidence that he is from Mars.

         13                 What it does mean is that it includes

         14  some very basic things. And the reason this comes up

         15  is that our investigation of the Commission from

         16  last year and others who have looked at the

         17  Commission have found that they don't take these

         18  very basic steps. The Commission has to be probing

         19  for the reasons for action or inaction that have

         20  been given by the defendant in every case. That's

         21  generally not done these days by the Commission.

         22  They don't probe the reasons. That's discrimination

         23  101.

         24                 There needs to be an understanding on

         25  the part of the Commission's Law Enforcement Bureau
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          2  that in the investigative stage, it has an active

          3  role in ferreting out facts, not a passive role of

          4  just judging whether discrimination has occurred.

          5  What they tend to do is get the defendant's story

          6  and say to the complainant, who 99 percent of the

          7  time is unrepresented, go and disprove what the

          8  defendant has said. It's the agency jobs to be the

          9  investigator. That's basic point number two.

         10                 The third thing which is even more

         11  basic is the idea that investigations require facts

         12  to be gathered from fact witnesses not from position

         13  statements of lawyers. And much more often than not,

         14  they just read the defendant's lawyers statement

         15  which has no probative value whatever, it's just

         16  spin, and take that rather than doing it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me just

         18  clarify. Because I have a great deal of sympathy for

         19  what you're saying. But I guess I want to get back

         20  to the core of my question which is if their

         21  objection is "thorough" is in the eye of the

         22  beholder and you may be going down a slippery slope

         23  where everything they do needs some second level of

         24  review to determine if it's thorough. And again I

         25  don't think that's necessarily a bad thing and I

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  don't think setting higher standards or thorough is

          3  bad. I'm just trying to get to and what this

          4  Committee is suppose to be doing is hearing all

          5  sides and make sense for what it means for

          6  legislation.

          7                 If they say thorough is too vague and

          8  there isn't an apparatus currently to review each

          9  case and determine whether it was thorough outside

         10  the Commission. The Commission itself does that in

         11  their view. They are trying to be rigorous and

         12  thorough. They have internal controls and

         13  accountability. They're already doing it. You're

         14  saying no, we need a different standard and

         15  therefore we obviously need some ability to see if

         16  that standard is being met. How do you answer that?

         17  How do you set the standard? How do you make the

         18  standard? How do you create accountability mechanism

         19  for the standard?

         20                 MR. GURIAN: The items that I've

         21  mentioned really are the basic things that anybody

         22  who would be looking at any kind of investigation

         23  would be looking at. The reason that the agency

         24  doesn't have anything to worry about is that as you

         25  know, courts are very, very differential when it
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          2  comes to reviewing what an agency does for the very

          3  reason that courts are not interested in reviewing

          4  every single case. So it's only those cases where

          5  there is a big deviation from a standard of

          6  thoroughness that the agency is going to have to be

          7  worried that anything is going on. It's kind of case

          8  where somebody and this happens all the time, where

          9  someone says, they didn't investigate any of the

         10  witnesses I told them about. Well, you know what, in

         11  that case they should have a problem and somebody

         12  should be able to go into court or come to this

         13  Committee and its oversight role and say, these guys

         14  are not doing the job. It's not really such a

         15  difficult thing to do.

         16                 Let me just add one thing very

         17  briefly. You remember last year when they came

         18  before this body with the idea of becoming

         19  substantially equivalent with the Fair Housing Act

         20  and oh, by the way, sneaking in reductions and

         21  disability coverage at the same time. There is no

         22  way that you could be found legitimately to be

         23  substantially equivalent with the requirements of

         24  the Fair Housing Act without doing these things. And

         25  one very useful and basic thing that they ought to
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          2  do is look at the HUD regulations for how

          3  investigations are going to be conducted and they

          4  describe a whole lot of procedures that the

          5  Commission simply never does.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you very

          7  much. I want to thank this panel. Craig, again thank

          8  you for your hard work on this legislation. We look

          9  forward to hearing the Administration's responses in

         10  about an hour. Thank you to this panel. I'd like to

         11  welcome our next panel. We'll be calling up Irum

         12  Taqi. I'm hope I'm saying all these right. If I'm

         13  not, I beg your forgiveness. Irum Taqi, Kathryn

         14  Mazierski, Jeannette Kossuth, and Diane Steinman.

         15  I'd like to welcome Council Member Christine Quinn.

         16  Welcome. Feel free and whoever would like to start.

         17  We'll hear the whole panel and see if there is any

         18  questions after. Irum, do you want to go?

         19                 MS. TAQI: Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Okay.

         21                 MS. TAQI: Good morning.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Could we get

         23  another regular chair for Diane so she is up at the

         24  table there. Irum, if you just get the microphone a

         25  little closer. When the green light is on there at
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          2  the bottom, you're on.

          3                 MS. TAQI: Okay. My name is Irum Taqi.

          4  I'm Legislative Counsel at the New York Civil

          5  Liberties Union. Thank you for convening this

          6  meeting and what I'd like to do is rather than

          7  duplicate what I'm sure others will say, I wanted to

          8  provide a little bit of background and context to

          9  the bill to further elaborate actually on what

         10  Chairman DeBlasio had spoken about briefly in his

         11  introductory remarks and then speak briefly about

         12  recovery of attorney's fees in catalyst cases.

         13                 Intro 22 sends a strong message that

         14  the Council has determined to preserve and

         15  strengthen the City's Human Rights Law to protect

         16  New Yorkers against discrimination. But also

         17  recognizes that both entrenched patterns and

         18  individual incidents of discrimination remain

         19  serious problems in New York City. As Council Member

         20  Seabrook said earlier, the City's housing market and

         21  public schools are among the most segregated in the

         22  country.

         23                 Fifty years after the Brown v. Board

         24  of Education decision condemning segregated schools

         25  as inherently unequal, public schools today remain
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          2  racially unbalanced. Sixty percent of all black

          3  students in New York State including those in New

          4  York City, attend schools that are at least 90

          5  percent black. Students at Mott Haven elementary

          6  school in the Bronx are over 99 percent black,

          7  making them statistically indistinguishable from

          8  students in pre- 1954 public schools whose racial

          9  segregation was enforced by Jim Crow laws. More

         10  Latinos in New York State than in any other state go

         11  to schools that are 90 percent or more Latino.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me just

         13  jump in. I apologize.

         14                 MS. TAQI: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I want to

         16  remind everyone we have a series of panels coming

         17  up. I would like everyone to just sort of focus on

         18  something. Read the pieces you feel you must, but

         19  summarize to the maximum if possible. Thank you.

         20                 MS. TAQI: Okay. One other point I'd

         21  like to make in terms of context is after the

         22  attacks on the World Trade Center, there have been

         23  numerous reports of discrimination among Arabs,

         24  Muslims and South Asians in New York City. There was

         25  a recent report issued by the New York City
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          2  Commission on Human Rights and the Commission had

          3  conducted a survey and the results of this survey

          4  that was conducted among Muslims, Arabs and South

          5  Asians communities in New York City reveals that 69

          6  percent of their respondents believe that they were

          7  the victim of discrimination or bias- related

          8  harassment since the attacks on the World Trade

          9  Center.

         10                 I'm just going to move on to the

         11  catalyst very briefly. Intro 22 would ensure that an

         12  individual or group that succeeds in changing a

         13  discriminatory policy by bringing a complaint under

         14  the Human Rights Law would recover costs and

         15  attorney's fees, even when the subject of the

         16  complaint voluntarily makes the change before a

         17  final ruling on the merits. If filing a complaint

         18  served as a catalyst to effect policy change or to

         19  stop some discriminatory action, then an individual

         20  or organization would be reimbursed for its efforts.

         21  The recovery of attorneys' fees empowers individuals

         22  who cannot afford a private attorney to redress

         23  violations of their civil rights and enables lawyers

         24  to take on complex, financially risky cases that

         25  often effect far- reaching policy change.

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 The Supreme Court recently overturned

          3  decades of precedent in rejecting the so- called

          4  catalyst theory and served to undermine the purpose

          5  of the civil rights laws which serve to compensate

          6  individuals harmed by discrimination and to

          7  discourage discrimination in the first place. In

          8  response, Intro 22 makes explicit that all

          9  complainants may be awarded attorneys fees in

         10  catalyst cases, serving to strengthen the

         11  enforcement of a City's Human Rights Law.

         12                 I'd like to close with the words of

         13  Mayor Dinkins when this is what he said in signing

         14  the comprehensive amendments to the City's Human

         15  Rights Law in 1991. They remain true today. "There

         16  is still much work to be done to help us achieve the

         17  goal of a truly open City. We have learned over the

         18  years that change will not come without resistance;

         19  that the struggle for civil rights must constantly

         20  be renewed; and that the struggle for the rights of

         21  one group is indivisible from the struggle for

         22  rights of all other groups. The new human rights

         23  bill gives us the legal tools we need to continue

         24  the fight." Intro 22 provides us with more of these

         25  tools. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you. And

          3  we'll have each person testify and then we'll go to

          4  Q&A. Whoever would like to go next?

          5                 MS. MAZIERSKI: Good morning. My name

          6  is Kathryn Lake Mazierski. I'm the New York State

          7  President of the National Organization for Women. We

          8  are the largest women's political action

          9  organization in the State of New York. We have

         10  14,000 members statewide within 24 chapters

         11  throughout the State.

         12                 I can tell you that the number one

         13  call that my office receives involves sexual

         14  harassment and allegations of wrongful dismissal as

         15  a consequence in the work place. I can tell you that

         16  even though we are the statewide chapter, a great

         17  majority of our members are here in New York City.

         18  Subsequently, we are very sensitive to the passage

         19  and promotion of Intro 22.

         20                 I want to speak to you particularly

         21  about the problems of sexual harassment and really

         22  discuss how important it is for the City's Human

         23  Rights Law to function and have all mechanisms of it

         24  function properly. As we've heard from Craig, courts

         25  regularly state that the standards for determining
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          2  whether sexual harassment, if it's occurred, is the

          3  same under the City Human Rights Law as it is under

          4  Federal law. Again, this underscores the problem of

          5  hitching the local law to a federal standard. That

          6  is blatantly disrespectful of women and trivializes

          7  the problem of sexual harassment.

          8                 Specifically we know that the federal

          9  standard says that in order to be actionable, sexual

         10  harassment must be severe or pervasive. Indeed the

         11  Supreme Court has said that only extreme conduct

         12  will be considered sexual harassment. This means

         13  that women who are touched without their consent,

         14  who are told they can't do their jobs because women

         15  who can't handle it, who are cursed at in sexual

         16  terms, or who are pressed repeatedly to enter into

         17  sexual relationships with their supervisor have

         18  often had their cases dismissed because a judge has

         19  said in fact, you haven't been harassed enough.

         20                 This problem is made worse by how the

         21  Supreme Court has cut back on protections against

         22  retaliation. So if a woman complains to her company

         23  about sexual harassment, before the harassment has

         24  become severe or pervasive and the woman is

         25  retaliated against for having complained, the
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          2  Supreme Court has held that the retaliation is not

          3  illegal because the woman could not have reasonably

          4  thought that the harassment was unlawful. On one

          5  hand, if a woman waits to complain after living with

          6  the harassment for the long time, the Supreme Court

          7  has said that she has failed, waited too long and

          8  failed to take advantage of the complaint process

          9  and that her charge should be dismissed on those

         10  grounds.

         11                 What we're stuck with is a standard

         12  that forces women not to complain too soon, not to

         13  complain too late, but expecting her to find just

         14  the right moment when legally the harassment is just

         15  right. That is an absurd catch 22. It is important

         16  to realize that the harassment cases that have been

         17  lost do not tell the whole story. We are all

         18  familiar with the grim history of how victims of

         19  rape and sexual abuse were discouraged from coming

         20  forward because they feared that their complaints

         21  would not be taken seriously.

         22                 Over the years, we've made good

         23  progress on that though more work remains to be

         24  done. In the context of sexual harassment, however,

         25  the hostile judicial climate in relation to these
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          2  claims means that many victims of sexual harassment

          3  may never step forward. Many of these who do are

          4  usually informed by attorney's that the way the law

          5  stands now, their claims are not going to be taken

          6  seriously. And under those circumstances, there are

          7  very few of us who would be prepared to step forward

          8  and undergo the ordeal of a lawsuit.

          9                 We don't believe that there should be

         10  a difficult problem to address legally. One question

         11  is whether someone who has been treated worse than

         12  others because of gender. That kind of mistreatment

         13  might involve sexual harassment. It might involve

         14  failure to hire or promote. It might involve

         15  differences in pay. With something like pay

         16  differences, courts are able to understand that

         17  difference in treatment is illegal. And is a

         18  separate question of how the victim has been

         19  damaged.

         20                 For example, if an employer announces

         21  that he was going to pay a woman 25 cents per hour

         22  less than a man, that is illegal. The fact is,

         23  what's at stake is only $10.00 per week only goes to

         24  the question of how much an individual plaintiff is

         25  entitled to in actual damages. Sexual harassment
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          2  claims could be treated in the same way. Separate

          3  out the question of liability from the scope of the

          4  damages. Get away from the idea that some sexual

          5  harassment is acceptable.

          6                 Right now civil rights advocates are

          7  willing and ready to make these arguments. The

          8  City's Human Rights Law should be a tool through

          9  which this fight can be fought. The door needs to be

         10  opened, however, and this is one of the reasons we

         11  are so excited about the prospect of Intro 22

         12  becoming law. If judges are forced to look at a

         13  proper standard for sexual harassment claims under

         14  the City's Human Rights Law, independents in the

         15  federal standard, we will be able to have an

         16  argument on the merits and not be stuck on the

         17  standard that continuously hurts women.

         18                 In other words, Intro 22 provides a

         19  means by which civil rights activism stymied in so

         20  many ways under the Federal level can flourish

         21  locally and we hope set a model for other states and

         22  municipalities. Beyond the specific issue of

         23  harassment, I want to take a moment to try to place

         24  in context why I think passing Intro 22 is so

         25  important.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me

          3  interpret. Again, I'm sorry to have to do this to

          4  everyone. I'm asking people to summarize, please.

          5  Not due from written text and we have now learned

          6  that Commissioner Gatling has arrived. We're going

          7  to finish out this panel. Commissioner Gatling is

          8  ahead of schedule. We're going to go to her panel

          9  next. So, everyone do what you've got to do, but

         10  please do a verbal summary rather than read from the

         11  text. All text will go into the record.

         12                 MS. MAZIERSKI: Okay. If I can just

         13  say quickly, we at now New York State, we've been

         14  involved for a long time trying to address the

         15  problems of the New York State Division of Human

         16  Rights. It has a huge and long standing problem. The

         17  agency is under funded. It's under staffed.

         18  Investigations are inadequate. And the agency often

         19  doesn't recognize the existence of discriminatory

         20  act let alone the seriousness of an act. We hope

         21  that the passage of Intro 22 will really set a

         22  positive standard for how future human rights bills

         23  are particularly at the division of human rights are

         24  passed. Let me pass that on to you, Diane.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Do you have
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          2  copies of your written testimony? Because I don't

          3  have it up here.

          4                 MS. MAZIERSKI: I can get you copies

          5  of that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Great. Thank

          7  you.

          8                 MS. KOSSUTH: Good morning and thanks

          9  for the opportunity to speak. I'll try to brief. My

         10  name is Jeannette Kossuth and I'm here representing

         11  the New York City Gay and Lesbian Anti- Violence

         12  Project. We are a crime victim assistance agency for

         13  the LGTB community in New York City. We provide

         14  services for crime victims.

         15                 I'm here to voice our support for

         16  Intro 22 and want to talk specifically about one

         17  case that is now on appeal that AVP was involved

         18  with. This is a case that involved clients of AVP.

         19  The clients were three transgender women from

         20  Brooklyn who were able in court to prove to a

         21  Federal court jury that they had been discriminated

         22  against in violation of the City's Human Rights Law

         23  by a local Toys R' Us. The defendant was found

         24  guilty. However, the jury did not award the

         25  plaintiffs any actual damages. The trial judge
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          2  awarded the plaintiff's attorney their fees, but

          3  then the second circuit asked the State Court of

          4  Appeals to decide whether the attorney's fees were

          5  available under the City Human Rights Law in cases

          6  where there are only nominal damages awarded. As I

          7  believe, they were Geoffrey dollars that were

          8  offered.

          9                 The defendant obviously is claiming

         10  that the fees should not be awarded. It's argued

         11  that City law should follow Federal law of this

         12  question and it will be no surprise that the Federal

         13  law has gotten worse on this as it has on many other

         14  questions since the 1991 revisions on the City Human

         15  Rights Law. Plaintiffs in the several Civil Rights

         16  Organizations that are seeking to intervene on its

         17  behalf are arguing that the City intended in the

         18  1991 amendments to resist cutbacks in civil rights

         19  protections and that the City's Human Rights Law

         20  needs to be interpreted broadly. They point out that

         21  cases in which people have been discriminated

         22  against, but the amount of damages are uncertain are

         23  precisely the kinds of cases for which it will be

         24  most difficult to retain attorney's if fees are not

         25  available.
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          2                 They also point out that even Federal

          3  case law in 1991 housed that fees were available and

          4  that there was no reason to believe the Council

          5  would have wanted to allow City law to track later

          6  Supreme Court decisions that announced more

          7  conservative rulings. Well, guess what side the

          8  Administration is came out on. It sought to file an

          9  amicus brief in this case on the side of the

         10  defendant. It wants the City law to be interpreted

         11  just like the narrow interpretation of federal law

         12  and for attorney's fees to be denied plaintiffs who

         13  have proved their rights under the City Human Rights

         14  Law have been violated.

         15                 The brief even uses as support the

         16  Supreme Court's Buckhannon case, the case that by a

         17  five to four vote, cut back on attorney's fees under

         18  federal law where the plaintiff achieves changes in

         19  defendant's policies. I think that was mentioned

         20  earlier. You can see the strategy: Let each Federal

         21  cutback in civil rights lead to more cutbacks on the

         22  local level.

         23                 At the heart of Intro 22 is a

         24  rejection of the idea that our civil rights should

         25  be held hostage to a hyper- conservative court in
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          2  Washington. This is why, for example, one of the

          3  sections in the bill rejects the Buckhannon case in

          4  order to encourage the bringing of cases that force

          5  changes in discriminatory policies. This body needs

          6  to stand up and say, in contrast to the

          7  Administration, that it stands for the view that

          8  civil rights must be actively defended and expanded.

          9  The passage of Intro 22 is the way to do that. Thank

         10  you for your time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you very

         12  much. Diane.

         13                 MS. STEINMAN: Thank you. I'm Diane

         14  Steinman. I'm the Executive Director of the New York

         15  City Chapter of the American Jewish Committee. There

         16  are 33 chapters of the American Jewish Committee

         17  around the country and we are almost 100 years old.

         18  I want to tell you just a little bit about us so

         19  that you understand why we're here today.

         20                 We were founded almost a 100 years

         21  ago to protect Jews from discrimination in Czarist

         22  Russia. The founders of the American Jewish

         23  Committee understood from the outset in 1906 that if

         24  you're going to protect Jews, that requires you to

         25  protect all human beings the rights, the dignity and
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          2  the security of all human beings wherever they live,

          3  whoever they are. We, from the beginning were

          4  concerned to protect civil rights and civil

          5  liberties here at home. This commitment remains

          6  strong today.

          7                 We are concerned about protecting

          8  against the erosion of civil rights. We are watching

          9  with alarm as everyone here is, the erosion of

         10  respect for civil rights and civil liberties in the

         11  United States. Coffe Anna (phonetic) has pointed out

         12  that we really need to put our investment where are

         13  words are. What we believe in with respect to Intro

         14  22 is Intro 22 says, we have a wonderful law on the

         15  books. Now we need to ensure that it creates what it

         16  sets out to create which is an environment where

         17  everyone in New York is protected against the

         18  erosion of civil rights. That means maintaining the

         19  standard that the City intended to be in effect

         20  against the erosion of conservative judges, State

         21  and Federal judges who want to rachet down the

         22  protections that in 1991, the City intended to

         23  afford to New Yorkers.

         24                 Council Member Brewer began by saying

         25  that this bill and civil rights in general don't
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          2  make headlines. We think that's one of the dangers

          3  and so the Board of Directors of the New York

          4  Chapter of The American Jewish Committee has asked

          5  me to come today to say, maybe these issues are not

          6  in the headlines. They deserve to be. And all

          7  organizations that understand that the rights and

          8  privileges of anyone depend on the protection of the

          9  rights and privileges of everyone that we need to

         10  stand up and say, this is an opportunity to do the

         11  right thing. And we hope the City Council does that.

         12  Thank you so much for the opportunity to be here.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you very

         14  much. I have a quick question as many of my

         15  colleagues does. I think it's directed to Irum, but

         16  if anyone else has an answer, I welcome it. On the

         17  question related to marital status and the goal of

         18  the legislation to clarify how that should be

         19  handled in light of the actions of some of the

         20  higher State courts.

         21                 Where does domestic partnership fall

         22  in all of this in the sense that I think all of us

         23  believe and recognize in reality of people's

         24  relationships in avoiding discrimination, is there

         25  any argument that with domestic partnership as a new
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          2  feature of our society here in New York City that

          3  that to some extent creates yet another category

          4  that complicates this particular question? Because

          5  someone could argue that a non- married couple could

          6  have chosen that option and that would have

          7  clarified their relationship?

          8                 I'm just thinking this off the top.

          9  Obviously, I support this legislation strongly. One

         10  of the things I'm trying to do is in advance get a

         11  sense from experts of how to respond of critiques

         12  that might come of this legislation. That's

         13  something that has popped into my mind that people

         14  might say because domestic partnership is an option.

         15  Couples could go in that direction.

         16                 MS. TAQI: I'm sorry. I just need to

         17  think for just one moment.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: You have that

         19  right as an American citizen.

         20                 MS. TAQI: Are you getting that the

         21  fact that they could say, well, -- you're saying

         22  that a criticism could potentially be, well you

         23  could go that route, the domestic partnership route.

         24  You're not -- right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Right. I'm
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          2  being a devil's advocate.

          3                 MS. TAQI: Right. I'm sorry. This is

          4  my first hearing. I feel a little a nervous. I'm

          5  thinking off the cuff. If you could give me a few

          6  minutes, I could get back to you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: We welcome

          8  that. We'll also let Craig informally pass an answer

          9  as well. I know he's been working on this a long

         10  time. But I think that's just an important area that

         11   -- the domestic partnership legislation is a great

         12  step forward for this City. But I want to make sure

         13  we can therefore answer this question given that

         14  we've taken that great step forward. Any other

         15  questions for the panel? Okay. Thank you. I'd like

         16  to thank this panel very much.

         17                 I'd like to welcome Council Member

         18  Jose Serrano and I'd like to congratulate him on his

         19  recent victory and say that the good people of his

         20  area may be taking him from away us in the next few

         21  weeks and we will miss him. But in the meantime,

         22  we're very happy you're here for this hearing. Let

         23  me call up now Commissioner Gatling and her team

         24  from the City Commission on Human Rights. Welcome,

         25  Commissioner. No, it's still morning. Welcome to you
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          2  and all your team. We welcome any testimony.

          3                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: We're delighted

          4  to be here. Mr. Chairman, Council Members, good

          5  afternoon. Thank you for giving the Commission an

          6  opportunity to testify regarding Intro 22 that

          7  proposes changes to various areas of the New York

          8  City Human Rights Law.

          9                 Deputy Commissioner Mulqueen

         10  testified about this Intro on October 16, 2003, and

         11  the Commission's position remains the same since

         12  that testimony. Intro 22 is of concern for a number

         13  of reasons, including the impression given by the

         14  title that civil rights in New York City need to be

         15  restored or that this proposed legislation would

         16  accomplish that restoration. We also question the

         17  proposed definition of marital status, the

         18  implication that the Commission does not conduct

         19  thorough investigations, that we must reject

         20  accepted legal standards and helpful case law and

         21  that the Commission should award attorney fees.

         22                 The Commission defines and applies

         23  the law with reference to marital status as offering

         24  protection both to those who are married and to

         25  those who are single. The proposed definition of
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          2  marital status will have the unintended consequence

          3  of protecting individuals who are not involved in

          4  the type of relationships that the, I believe the

          5  City Council is seeking to protect.

          6                 With reference to the proposed

          7  addition of the word, thorough, to Section 8-

          8  109(g), no Commissioner feels more strongly about

          9  the need for conducting thorough investigations than

         10  I do. What would be considered thorough depends

         11  largely on the facts of the given case and the

         12  likelihood of uncovering relevant information by

         13  pursuing a particular investigatory avenue. However,

         14  whether an investigation is thorough is very

         15  subjective, having no legal basis or definition. And

         16  as the courts have repeatedly held, the Commission

         17  has the discretion to determine the means and

         18  methods of its investigation.

         19                 We also disagree with the proposed

         20  provision in Section 8- 130 that would limit the

         21  Commission's use of State and Federal case law

         22  precedent. There must be some legal point of

         23  reference and standard for the Commission and the

         24  public to rely upon. The Commission often provides

         25  assistance to people who have nowhere else to turn
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          2  for help. We oppose the proposed amendment to

          3  Section 8- 117(b) that would allow the recovery of

          4  attorney's fees to private attorneys on cases that

          5  are filed administratively by the Commission.

          6  Allowing for attorney's fees for cases filed by our

          7  agency will compensate private attorneys for the

          8  investigation and litigation work conducted by a

          9  City agency. Such a proposal would impinge on the

         10  spirit of the City's Human Right Law.

         11                 Additionally, awarding attorney fees

         12  will adversely affect the Commission by opening it

         13  up to additional litigation relating to the award

         14  and/or adequacy of the award, diverting resources

         15  from more important matters. I thank you for the

         16  time and the opportunity to share our views.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you very

         18  much, Commissioner. Let me as I stated earlier, I am

         19  not a lawyer. So I hope that's a bag of honor in

         20  this case.

         21                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Well, you write

         22  the laws that we try to interpret.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I think it

         24  works better this way. We look at each day as a

         25  fresh new thing and not encumbered by all that legal
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          2  education. Based on human life and common sense, let

          3  me ask you a few questions here. Let me start with

          4  the attorney's fees. I guess the question I would

          5  have is I understand how you have approached this

          6  historically and I certainly understand and

          7  appreciate the work you do. I don't think there is

          8  anything in any of this that questions your

          9  commitment and your teams commitment to getting the

         10  job done. I do think that there is a question about

         11  how do we encourage people to come forward and how

         12  do we give people faith that the process will work

         13  for them.

         14                 I think there is a question

         15  throughout all of government, not just in New York

         16  City Human Rights Commission. One concern is, if

         17  you're not providing attorney's fees, aren't you to

         18  some extent creating a disincentive for people to

         19  come forward in some cases and for the most rigorous

         20  follow through on a case. I'm concerned that's and I

         21  think some of the testimony we just heard from some

         22  of the organizations that I'm sure you agree are the

         23  forefront of protecting human rights and civil

         24  rights. If they're saying that this is something

         25  that would make it easier for them and for people
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          2  they represent, why isn't it true that there is some

          3  positive incentive in the awarding of those fees to

          4  help to bring those cases forward.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: I think

          6  first of all, our work speaks for itself as far as

          7  encouraging people to come down. We've had a lot of

          8  success in all the cases that we prosecute and those

          9  successes have been highlighted in the news and on

         10  the television and that itself should be enough for

         11  people to have faith in the system and come forward

         12  if that's their intention. We don't see how awarding

         13  an attorney fee or encouraging an attorney to bring

         14  a case to the Human Rights Commission as opposed to

         15  somewhere else is going to encourage anybody but an

         16  attorney to come down. The work we do, we do all the

         17  work. For an attorney to collect a fee because of

         18  the work that we've done is not appropriate.

         19                 Additionally, the City pays for the

         20  services that we provide. We represent the

         21  complainant or least advocate on behalf of the

         22  complainant. We don't represent them. The City is

         23  already paying for those services. If we award

         24  attorney fees since most of our employment cases

         25  and/or housing cases are against the City, then the
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          2  City would then be paying for the services of the

          3  Commission and in addition have to pay for the

          4  services of an attorney.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Not for a

          6  moment am I suggesting we should ever take a

          7  budgetary implication lightly. But I want to put

          8  that aside just so I can get to the kernel of this.

          9  Even though you're doing a lot in the way of

         10  outreach and I agree with you, every time you have a

         11  success that gets publicized, that is an incentive

         12  for folks to come forward. But I think we would all

         13  agree that there is not enough in the way of the

         14  word getting out of the good work that the Human

         15  Rights Commission does because any good news doesn't

         16  get out enough in New York City and I think there is

         17  still hundreds of thousands of people who don't

         18  understand the option they have in going to the

         19  Human Rights Commission. I don't think that's a

         20  radical statement given that a composition of New

         21  York City's population and in the imperfect flow of

         22  information.

         23                 In fact, if attorneys have an

         24  incentive to bring forward valid cases, isn't that

         25  adding another layer to the work you do? Again, put
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          2  aside the budget implication because I understand

          3  that and put aside the good work you do because I

          4  understand that too. But isn't that an incentive if

          5  an attorney is aware of a case or someone brings a

          6  case to an attorney who can take some valid action,

          7  isn't that adding another layer to the work you're

          8  doing in a good way?

          9                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: No. I really

         10  don't see that in a good way necessarily because I

         11  think as attorneys, we have an obligation to help

         12  the people that come to us whether we get paid or

         13  not; whether we're in private practice or in public

         14  practice. I think that an attorney who doesn't for

         15  any particular reason want to handle a case because

         16  he or she won't get paid. They're in business.

         17  They're businessmen. I think you have to remember

         18  that attorney's in private practice are first

         19  enforced business people. They have to be if they're

         20  going to be successful. They should refer them

         21  anyway. We do receive quite a few referrals from

         22  attorneys who say, well you know, it's not the kind

         23  of case that I would win substantially later.

         24  They've assessed the situation and they'll send to

         25  us. I would argue that attorneys have that argument.
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          2  We spend time speaking to members of the bar and

          3  talking to them about what we're doing.

          4                 Again, I think the attorney's fees

          5  would certainly add another layer of work to what we

          6  do. We'd spend most of the time litigating. Who put

          7  that proposal? Well, it was my case. No, it was my

          8  case. The arguments and settling the arguments. It

          9  was my complainant who basically pushed this forward

         10  and this proposal landed in this place. Then I would

         11  be in the business of tracking what each and every

         12  attorney does on the case. I would have to have a

         13  whole other administrative layer just to make sure

         14  that the attorneys were being paid properly. Then I

         15  would have to litigate it most of the time.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I having served

         17  in the Executive Branch, I hear you loud and clear.

         18  I would never belittle the seriousness of those

         19  concerns. I'm still stuck on one point. I feel

         20  having work with the Commission in various

         21  capacities for a long time that we're still swimming

         22  up stream simply because you're never going to have

         23  the resources or fully educate the populous. You're

         24  not even going to come close. I'm looking at this

         25  from just a realistic point of view as you are, I
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          2  think. That you're got a lot people who still don't

          3  know you exist which is not your fault. It's the way

          4  our society is structured. You're doing a lot of

          5  good work to get the word out. I hear you about

          6  educating attorneys. But even that class is a huge

          7  class of people in this City. I'm sure that

          8  education process is imperfect.

          9                 I think we would all agree

         10  particularly in this fast paced City that if an

         11  attorney is looking at a situation no matter what

         12  their ideal responsibilities might be or if any

         13  professionals is looking at a situation, you would

         14  like everyone to treat every case with perfect

         15  attention and take the ideal next step. But that if

         16  there was some incentive to follow through, you

         17  would probably hear about a lot more in the way of

         18  valid cases. I can't believe that every attorney is

         19  just common sense and again rebut because you may

         20  understand things I don't understand. I can't

         21  believe every attorney who hears of every case is

         22  taking the time and energy to pass it on if they

         23  don't have a personal investment in it. I'm not

         24  damning attorneys by saying that.

         25                 I can't believe every case that
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          2  should be reaching you is reaching you. I'm saying

          3  that this is just an argument about where you put

          4  your priorities. Anything that increases the flow of

          5  valid cases to the Commission and the Commission, I

          6  think, doing a good job once you get the case. But

          7  if you don't get the case, you can't do anything. So

          8  anything that increases the flow of valid cases, I

          9  would think is a net gain for the work you're doing.

         10  How do you respond to that?

         11                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Well, I

         12  disagree with the attorneys. If the overriding issue

         13  is increasing the cases in a net gain, then there

         14  are other ways to do it. I don't think attorneys

         15  having been one for almost 20 years and in that

         16  world is the way to get that information out there.

         17  I think the way to get information out there is to

         18  work in schools. I think that schools and parents

         19  with children are really the sort of idea place to

         20  go to push forward the education. And we've been

         21  starting with some of that. Now be it in a small

         22  way, but in a perfect world where we are really

         23  trying to get the message out, I think the way to do

         24  that would be through the educational system.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Why are the two
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          2  mutually exclusive? In other words, I would suppose

          3  in that. I wish you had more budget to do that. I'm

          4  sure you do.

          5                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Well, because I

          6  think that parents and I think students and parents

          7  and because there is so many of them and that's the

          8  way to go in this City. I think that involving

          9  attorneys to the extent that we'll basically give

         10  you a fee, a finders fee for a case, is just going

         11  to line their pockets and we're going to have all

         12  kinds of cases. All kinds of cases that might turn

         13  out to not be real allegations. I mean I just don't

         14  see anything positive. Because they have an economic

         15  reason for doing what they're doing. Where as I

         16  don't think that the school system and involving

         17  parents and teachers and students would have the

         18  same kind of motivation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: We might come

         20  back to that in a little bit. Let me take you to a

         21  couple of other areas. I know my colleagues have

         22  some questions as well. On the question of marital

         23  status, I don't believe any of us are disagreeing

         24  that there's an area, a very large area of concern

         25  here where you have two people who are together in a
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          2  serious way, who happen not to be married, whose

          3  rights should be protected. I guess I'm trying to

          4  figure out how, this bill seeks to respond to that

          5  problem. I think we agree it is a broad gray area in

          6  law. But it's a very big area in terms of everyday

          7  life in our society, more now than ever. This bill

          8  puts forward an example of addressing. The testimony

          9  we heard earlier is just one of many examples of

         10  people in real life suffered some form of

         11  discrimination because they happen not to be

         12  married. I'd like to hear a little more response to

         13  how you feel about the wording of this bill and if

         14  don't think that wording is right, what wording or

         15  what approach do you think is right? Because I think

         16  we have to say that something is not covered

         17  currently.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: With

         19  regard to the wording --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Did you

         21  introduce yourself? I know who you are. But for the

         22  record, did you?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Deputy

         24  Commissioner, Cliff Mulqueen.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you. Go
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          2  ahead.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: I've

          4  been a lawyer for 15 years. I read the language of

          5  this proposal and I did not understand it. I don't

          6  think that a lay person is going to understand what

          7  this means. That's the first problem. As far as

          8  working together and maybe coming up with some sort

          9  of language that reaches the goals that you wish to

         10  reach, we can do that in the future. I'm not quite

         11  even sure what you're looking to do with the

         12  definition.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me press

         14  you a little on this. Again, we're all working in

         15  good faith here. This is the second hearing we've

         16  had on this. You guys have had a lot of time, I'm

         17  sure to consider this. I know how much else you do.

         18  But we're not disagreeing there is a lot of

         19  unmarried people who are in serious long- term

         20  relationships in New York City. Can we agree on

         21  that?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Of

         23  course.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Okay. That some

         25  forms of discrimination are occurring to those folks
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          2  in every day life.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: All right. The

          5  concern here is that the current law just doesn't

          6  get clear or specific enough about that. Or perhaps

          7  some of that discrimination might not be occurring.

          8  And so if this bill is one attempt to answer that

          9  and you say it's not as clear or effective as it

         10  might be, I respect that. I'm saying give me a

         11  direction. Give me a sense of how you think we could

         12  improve upon current law to protect that class of

         13  people which I would guess in again in the hundreds

         14  of thousands in New York City.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: I'm

         16  still not clear on what the class of people are.

         17  I'll give you an example. Before I got married, I

         18  had a roommate for 12 years. We lived in an

         19  apartment together. We shared household expenses. We

         20  even had a summer house that we rented together with

         21  a group of other people. That I assume would not be

         22  the type of relationship you're looking to protect.

         23  Yet the way this is written or the way I understand

         24  what you're trying to do, roommates such as I was

         25  with this individual would be protected under this
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          2  proposal as the definition of marital status. I

          3  would think that's inappropriate.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I respect that

          5  response. I think that's a good faith response. I'm

          6  getting back to let's take a more obvious example.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Let's

          8  take a same sex couple.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let's take a

         10  same sex couple. Let's take a different sex couple

         11  that has been together for five years and has not

         12  yet married. The example that we heard earlier that

         13  was treated by a co- op board differently than had

         14  they been married despite the fact that they met all

         15  other requirements for that co- op. I think the fact

         16  is there is a lot of serious long- term couples in

         17  New York City of different configurations who happen

         18  not to be married who clearly could or do suffer

         19  discrimination. I'm saying, okay you're saying this

         20  wording is too broad. Do you have a direction we

         21  could go in for a wording that you think might get

         22  at the categories we should be protecting?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Again,

         24  I mean if you're looking to protect same sex couples

         25  for instance, I would argue to you that they're
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          2  already protected. They may not be protected under

          3  the definition of marital status. But we would

          4  protect them at the Human Rights Commission based on

          5  their sexual orientation. It's not necessarily that

          6  they would have to be domestic partners, although

          7  that would make the analysis much simpler. But even

          8  if they had the types of relationships that the

          9  court cases have discussed where they live together,

         10  they share expenses, maybe the beneficiaries of each

         11  other's insurance policies and things of that

         12  nature, that would be enough to establish the

         13  relationship and that would be enough for the Human

         14  Rights Commission to bring a case based on a sexual

         15  orientation discrimination.

         16                 Now would that work with a

         17  heterosexual couple that maybe has that long- term

         18  relationship? No, it would not. But I'm not sure

         19  that we would want to even go that far and protect

         20  the heterosexual couple that chose not to get

         21  married or chose not to enter into a domestic

         22  partnership. Why would we go forward and protect

         23  them especially when there is a downside with regard

         24  to these other people that would be unintentionally

         25  protected and unnecessarily protected?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Okay. I'm going

          3  to pass it over to my colleagues now. I think this

          4  is an area where we should have some follow- up

          5  conversations on because I think maybe there is more

          6  common ground than we realize. I'm just reflecting

          7  on everyday life. I think there still are some folks

          8  who are going unprotected now and we need to seek

          9  some language that will provide that protection.

         10  Again, I think this bill is doing a public service

         11  by presenting one way of doing that. Let me see if

         12  Council Member Gale Brewer has questions.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         14  much for joining us here today. One question I have,

         15  is do you think the City law should automatically be

         16  cut back every time the Federal law or even State

         17  law is cut back?

         18                 We do hear in our City that there are

         19  challenges on the Federal and State law. Obviously,

         20  I'm not trying to make it anything that is

         21  political, but just the fact that I think we, in New

         22  York City, do take these issues very seriously, and

         23  I'm not sure that it is always taken as seriously on

         24  the Federal and State level?

         25                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: You said cut

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  back, Council Member?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In other

          4  words, when I say cut back, I mean the restrictions

          5  are, you know, given the different courts in the

          6  more conservative nature not as adherent to the

          7  rights of individuals as we would like.

          8                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Is there a

          9  specific instance?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: No. Are you

         11  feeling that there are no differences on the Federal

         12  and State law that you think are adequate?

         13                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: No. No, I

         14  believe in our law and I mean it's extremely broad.

         15  We're very proud of the fact that it is. But I guess

         16  I just don't really understand the question. Do you?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: What I'm

         18  saying is it that the interpretations on the Federal

         19  and State level are not as stringent in terms of

         20  discrimination as they are locally. And we are

         21  relying often on State and Federal. I'm just

         22  wondering -- there was testimony earlier as you can

         23  imagine stating that we need to have less reliance

         24  and that's why we need Intro 22.

         25                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: I don't know if
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          2  we actually at the Commission rely on them. As I

          3  said in my testimony, State and Federal laws is a

          4  point of reference. It's a either a point that we

          5  don't want to go to. For instance, the Siek case I

          6  think is a good example of that. It's a point of

          7  departure or a point of beginning. I don't think

          8  that there is this reliance in terms of how we

          9  conduct an investigation. Deputy Commissioner

         10  Mulqueen would like to give another example.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: As an

         12  example, let's take the Americans with Disabilities

         13  Act. The Federal law is very restrictive on that.

         14  The Human Rights Law is very expansive and we

         15  enforce the Human Rights Law. And that would be an

         16  example or an incident of a case where we wouldn't

         17  necessarily apply Federal law because Federal law

         18  doesn't exist in some of these incidences. They are

         19  also various protective classes that the Human

         20  Rights Law covers that Federal or State law don't

         21  And obviously we can't look to those incidences in

         22  State or Federal law. But we never look to restrict

         23  the Human Rights Law. We're always looking to expand

         24  it and look at it as liberally as possible. If you

         25  have a particular example of what you're referring
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          2  to, then I could probably better answer your

          3  question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I think it is

          5  just a further discussion. But what happens, I

          6  think, is that there is a concern not just from

          7  private attorneys, we here a lot, of course, from

          8  the LDS and people who are representing people in

          9  different communities that there is always the

         10  notion and the feeling that on the Federal and State

         11  level there is too much reliance by the Commission.

         12  Now you're saying that you're just using it as a

         13  guide post. That's just not the general feeling. We

         14  can have more discussion.

         15                 The other question I have is, 311 is

         16  a wonderful tool and there are incidences in which

         17  people call 311, not just for the direct City agency

         18  pothole complaint. But also, I'm sure to find out

         19  how they can pursue a discrimination case of some

         20  kind. How many of those do you think are going to

         21  you or perhaps people call and don't follow up for

         22  whatever reason. Do you do some follow up for those

         23  people who don't follow up with the case?

         24                 Discrimination is very different than

         25  reporting a pothole. It's very personal. It's very
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          2  emotional. It's very challenging. I'm just wondering

          3  because we do feel, I feel anyway, that people call

          4  for this issue. I know that many more calls come in

          5  than are followed up on. I'm just wondering if it is

          6  because they feel that they don't have an attorney

          7  going in there. That's not what they're suppose to

          8  have. But there is a lot of challenging feeling

          9  about pursuing something like that. I'm just

         10  wondering, do you follow up? Do you feel that you

         11  need to follow up? What's the status?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MELMAN: Avery

         13  Melman, I'm a Deputy Commissioner at the Human

         14  Rights Commission. Every phone call that our agency

         15  gets, gets logged. Whether the person wants to make

         16  an appointment, whether the person wants to ask a

         17  question. Those phone calls are then distributed to

         18  members of the Law Force and Bureau Staff. Everyone

         19  of those phone calls is followed up with a phone

         20  call by a member of our staff to find out what the

         21  issue is, why they called the agency and what

         22  services they need.

         23                 There is an initial decision made at

         24  that level by myself and the managing attorney

         25  whether this individual should come in for an
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          2  appointment. Whether it's just an inquiry, a

          3  question or whether the person wants just some

          4  random information about the work we do at the Human

          5  Rights Commission. But every single person that

          6  calls our agency and makes a request to get

          7  information whether it's about filing a complaint,

          8  whether they think they have been discriminated or

          9  not, has a follow up phone call made by our agency

         10  personnel and then the detail of the conversation is

         11  memorialized and kept in files in our agency.

         12                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: If I might add,

         13  Council Member, just this morning we were meeting

         14  with members of the community presses. We have been

         15  going from borough to borough meeting with community

         16  press members, most of whom represent a lot of

         17  communities that are non- English speaking primarily

         18  and encouraging them to use 311 and encouraging them

         19  to come forward. Of course, a lot of the concerns

         20  have to do with citizenship status, that kind of

         21  thing. We are making a big, big effort to get people

         22  to use 311 more and to just make an inquiry. To make

         23  an inquiry.

         24                 One of the things I always say is

         25  that I think because of our agency title, New York
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          2  Human Rights Commission that often times it gets

          3  lost that we are civil rights agency and anti-

          4  discrimination. That might be something to even talk

          5  about in terms of again changing the name. We were

          6  changed to City Human Rights Commission, I believe,

          7  in around 1955. And maybe we need to have something

          8  else either in the name so that people will really

          9  understand. Because I think that people who came,

         10  especially from a lot of foreign countries, they

         11  think human rights. They think it has to be a larger

         12  issue, a broader issue, more people that doesn't

         13  really mean you're talking about my employer. Or

         14  you're talking about me not being able to go into a

         15  store or a movie theater. That's what we've been

         16  trying to get across to the general public.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The other

         18  question is, the issue of -- are many of your

         19  employment cases against the City or are they more

         20  general against the private sector? Do you have any

         21  kind of a break down? I'm asking that for a specific

         22  reason.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MELMAN: The

         24  majority of people that work in the City or a large

         25  percentage of people that work in the City work for
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          2  the City.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MELMAN:

          5  Therefore, there are the employment cases, there is

          6  a greater percentage of employment cases filed

          7  against various City agencies. But there is not one

          8  or two City agencies that stand out that have the

          9  bulk or a lot. It's spread out amongst the numerous,

         10  numerous City agencies.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you,

         14  Council Member. Next question is from Council Member

         15  Annabel Palma.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Commissioner

         17  Mulqueen, you had alluded before that a couple that

         18  chooses not to get married wouldn't have the same

         19  rights as a domestic couple.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: What I

         21  had said was that heterosexual couple who are not

         22  domestic partners and who don't have the

         23  relationship that courts have recognized that would

         24  be the equivalent of domestic partners, may not be

         25  protected under the Human Rights Law as it exists.
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          2  If we're dealing with same sex couples, we're able a

          3  lot of times to protect them based on a sexual

          4  orientation protective class as opposed to a marital

          5  status protected class. But that marital class,

          6  obviously the sexual orientation protected class

          7  wouldn't exist with a heterosexual couple and if the

          8  marital status protection doesn't exist, then those

          9  individuals may not be protected. If they chose not

         10  to get married for whatever reason they chose not to

         11  get married, they would still have the option of

         12  getting a domestic partnership agreement and in that

         13  instance, I believe that the Human Rights Law could

         14  protect them.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: But only if

         16  they chose to -- I think a heterosexual couple

         17  living under the same roof, sharing bills and being

         18  in each other's insurance policy would have the same

         19  rights as a domestic partner, although they had to

         20  file under domestic partnership.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: I guess

         22  the way the law exists now, it would not be covered.

         23  I'm not sure that the proposal accomplishes it that

         24  or if it does accomplish it, but then it also

         25  includes many other relationships that I think we
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          2  would agree we would not want to cover or protect. I

          3  guess that's the balance we have to draw.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me just

          6  pick up for a moment on the issue of City law versus

          7  State and Federal law and the back drop I think

          8  everyone here can appreciate that there is a growing

          9  discomfort with what's happening on the Federal

         10  level. And not just in this municipality, but in

         11  many others. That's what motivating a sort of re-

         12  examination of how much strength City law has in the

         13  legal process. Let me just give you an example. I

         14  don't know the details of this case. It's being

         15  passed to me by our counsel. I will just admit up

         16  front my lack of detail. But just to give you an

         17  example that you may be familiar with.

         18                 The case of Gurry versus Merck

         19  (phonetic) which the plaintiff went to Federal court

         20  because of a situation of retaliation by her firm

         21  and the judge in the southern district of New York

         22  and the judge analyzed the standard of liability

         23  under Federal law but did not do so under the City's

         24  Human Rights Law. And that's made explicit in the

         25  judge's opinion. That is one example of a recent
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          2  case in which the fact that there was not some

          3  explicit dynamic mandating that the judge consider

          4  the City law led to the judge simply considering

          5  Federal law. Can you give some response to that?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: I'm not

          7  sure any amendment to the City's Human Rights Law is

          8  going to require a Federal judge to examine and

          9  analyze the City Human Rights Law. The City's Human

         10  Rights Law has no absolutely no precedent over

         11  Federal judge. What I would suggest is that Ms.

         12  Gurry come to the Human Rights Commission and we

         13  would have taken care of her.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Do you think,

         15  therefore, just so I understand, you think that the

         16  City Human Rights Law is not a pertinent

         17  consideration for a Federal judge in a case like

         18  that?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:

         20  Obviously a Federal judge should analyze the City's

         21  Human Rights Law if there is a claim being filed

         22  based upon the City's Human Rights Law. But there is

         23  no way that we are going to be able to force that to

         24  occur by changing the Human Rights Law.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: You don't think
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          2  it sends a signal that's helpful. Obviously the

          3  legislative process and you don't need to be a

          4  lawyer to know this, that this legislative process

          5  is a large measure about directing all levels of

          6  public service to certain goals.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Again,

          8  we're talking about a Federal judge who's not going

          9  to -- we're not going to be able force the Federal

         10  judge to do something he or she does not want to do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I couldn't

         12  agree more. But respectfully and I'd like you to

         13  respect this Committee as I ask you this question

         14  again because we respect the Commission greatly and

         15  always show that respect. So please respect me back.

         16  I asked you does it help, does it send the message

         17  to the Federal judge or any Federal judge if a City

         18  law is more explicit? Does that help as trying to

         19  move public policy in a certain direction? I'm not

         20  saying we can go and handcuff the judge. I'm asking

         21  you is it helpful.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: I don't

         23  know. It may be helpful, it may not be helpful. I

         24  can't tell you whether it would be helpful. I guess

         25  it couldn't hurt, but I don't know if it could be
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          2  helpful.

          3                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: The only thing

          4  that I can think of is that often times when lawyers

          5  file in Federal court, they will file with our law.

          6  They will add our law, the New York City Human

          7  Rights Law in addition. It's a great law. And I

          8  think Federal judges probably do read it. They'll

          9  read it and they'll take it into consideration to

         10  some extent. I guess our reluctance is that we've

         11  appeared before many Federal judges and that's kind

         12  of, it's a different avenue. I think that what we

         13  should be concerned with is whether or not the law

         14  works here at the Commission and whether it works

         15  for our citizens. Because I think quite frankly we

         16  do a better job than a lot of the courts.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: And this is a

         18  question of someone who doesn't understand these

         19  dynamics. I'll admit that up front. Is there a

         20  reason someone, in your opinion, would chose the

         21  Federal route? Is there a reason even just a

         22  perception that would lead them to chose the Federal

         23  route rather than the City route? Is there something

         24  that needs to be addressed there?

         25                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Absolutely. I
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          2  mean I think jury awards comes to mind, large jury

          3  awards. But I also think one of the things --

          4  instead of an opinion, let me give you an for

          5  instance. With the Siek case, there were two Sieks

          6  and they're actually related. We had one case at the

          7  Commission and then there was another case filed in

          8  Federal court. Same group of individuals working

          9  together because they wanted to see essentially what

         10  process would be quicker and better. In the Federal

         11  court, the individual was seeking damages and a lot

         12  of money. In our instance, our complainant just

         13  wanted his job back. To be able to wear his turban

         14  and practice his religion. We were working in

         15  tandem. They knew what we were doing and we were

         16  working with the lawyers. Our case and our process

         17  went a lot faster. They were waiting to see what

         18  happened. Deputy Commissioner Melman can give you

         19  more details if you're interested. To see what

         20  happened with us so that they could use that to

         21  negotiate something on the other case.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: What happened?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MELMAN: It was a

         24  result of a litigation by the Human Rights

         25  Commission in which we tried the case way before the
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          2  Federal case even got to discovery phase. There was

          3  a full trial. Witnesses were called. Witnesses were

          4  flown in from different countries as well as

          5  different parts of this country by the Commission in

          6  order to prosecute this case appropriately. The

          7  judge ruled or recommended that the Siek should be

          8  reinstated and be allowed to wear his turban in full

          9  uniform. As a result of that recommendation, members

         10  of the Commission issued an order stating that the

         11  Police Department had to rehire the individual and

         12  had to allow him to wear his turban while serving in

         13  a uniform as a Traffic Enforcement Agent.

         14                 Once that order was issued, that's

         15  when the Police Department agreed to heed the order

         16  and not appeal the order by the Commission and

         17  agreed to reinstate the TA and follow the order of

         18  the Commission. It was at that point that the

         19  Federal lawsuit was resolved in which that

         20  individual was allowed to return back to his job as

         21  well. The Federal complainant and work as a Traffic

         22  Enforcement Agent and wear his uniform along with a

         23  turban.

         24                 The Federal lawsuit would have never

         25  been resolved in that fashion, but for the fact that
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          2  the agency, the Human Rights Commission, litigated

          3  that matter. Got a favorable recommendation from a

          4  judge as a result of very hard work by members of

          5  our agency. Wrote extensive briefs regarding this

          6  matter and then the order upholding or in line with

          7  the recommendation of the Oath Judge, basically

          8  telling the Police Department, we're ordering you to

          9  reinstate that individual. And the Police Department

         10  recognizing that the order came from the Human

         11  Rights Commission, did not appeal it, and reinstated

         12  the individual.

         13                 Regarding Federal State law being

         14  stronger or not as strong, the key to winning this

         15  case was that we distinguished the facts and

         16  circumstances of the Siek case from other Federal

         17  law precedent which did not allow individuals to

         18  wear certain garments of religion. The case that was

         19  Supreme Court case that was on the books for many

         20  years regarding a Jewish officer who was not allowed

         21  to wear his yarmulke in uniform and the Supreme

         22  Court upheld the fact that he was not allowed to

         23  wear his yarmulke in uniform. The Police Department

         24  and other individuals saw that as a precedent for

         25  not allowing the Siek to wear his turban.
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          2                 What we do is we litigate the matter

          3  using the cases that are out there that we need to

          4  use as precedent and as reference. We distinguished

          5  our case from that case and convinced the judge in

          6  oath that we were in the right even though it was a

          7  case of first impression and cleared the Police

          8  Department after the order was issued; reviewed

          9  their right to appeal and decided not to and

         10  reinstated the individual. It's about using the laws

         11  that are there. Using the Human Rights Law to best

         12  argue the position that's correct and just.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you. Any

         14  other questions? Council Member Brewer.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I just have a

         16  question about the attorney's fees. I understand and

         17  I know how much work you do and I know that you try

         18  to look at case individually, but aren't the fees

         19  only available after a probable cause determination,

         20  not for all the work that you're doing during the

         21  investigation. So it's not an immediate situation.

         22  And also in many cases individuals look for some of

         23  the legal defense funds and organizations that are

         24  not there for the profit motive particularly on the

         25  issue of human rights.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MELMAN: When we

          3  investigate a case and issue a probable cause

          4  determination, there is a lot of effort put into the

          5  investigation. But once a probable cause

          6  determination is issued, then the case is litigated

          7  even with more resource support into it. We're

          8  talking about research, writing, briefing,

          9  witnesses, depositions. These come at a tremendous

         10  cost to the agency. To then reward an attorney with

         11  fees for the work of a City attorney would be

         12  improper. I think as the Commissioner stated, it

         13  would also lead us down a line of extensive

         14  litigation and how much fees we're going issue to

         15  these individuals and who is going to decide those

         16  fees. Then when that attorney is not happy with the

         17  fees that are given to that individual, then there

         18  will be more litigation and more appeals and more

         19  work to be done that will be taken away from what

         20  we're really suppose to be doing and that's

         21  enforcing the Human Rights Law and prosecuting human

         22  rights cases.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Are there

         24  other ways then that you can consider obviously

         25  going to some of the ethnic press outlets and so on?
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          2  But I think one of the concerns that we all have is

          3  maybe it's the name as the Commissioner indicated.

          4  Maybe it's the fact that there is no way you're

          5  going to have a major publicity budget because there

          6  isn't that kind of funding available. But there must

          7  be other kind of ways. Some of which I think are

          8  discussed in Intro 22 to tell the public out there.

          9  We did hear some examples today of a individual

         10  discriminating at Toy R' Us for instance, who went

         11  to a wonderful non- profit that focuses on

         12  discrimination in the LGTB community. The fact of

         13  the matter is, I don't think people do think to come

         14  to the Commission first, perhaps because of the cap

         15  on the fees. Perhaps its because of you only have

         16  limited resources. There are, I think, some legal

         17  reasons why they are concerned about not coming to

         18  us first.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MELMAN: People do

         20  come to us and this misnomer that we're not known, I

         21  think is false. We just had a case that was

         22  highlighted, the results of the case were

         23  highlighted as well as the investigation on Shame on

         24  You with Arnold Diaz (phonetic). It was on a couple

         25  weeks ago about our investigation regarding real
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          2  estate practices by a particular real estate agent

          3  that was not allowing blacks and African Americans

          4  and Hispanics to rent in a certain area of Queens.

          5  We got a resolution on behalf of the individual that

          6  was aggrieved as well as imposed a fine on that

          7  individual, real estate broker. It was highlighted

          8  in a report by Arnold Diaz on Channel 2 which is one

          9  of the strongest outlets for people to see what we

         10  do.

         11                 As a result of that, we get hundreds

         12  of call requesting our intervention and our help on

         13  matters. Our agency phones are always ringing.

         14  People are always coming down. We have appointments

         15  every day, all day, from 10:00 in the morning to, I

         16  think, about 4:30, 5:00 and then usually people come

         17  late. So, it's even longer than that. Do people need

         18  to know about us more? Sure. But do people know

         19  about us? Yes. We have appointments scheduled from

         20  now until early November of people looking to make

         21  an appointment. And if people need an appointment

         22  earlier, we certainly would squeeze them in and

         23  bring more resources to meet with those individuals.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I appreciate

         25  it. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: In closing, I

          3  just wanted to, two points, one Commissioner on the

          4  point about the name. I'd like to pick up on that

          5  too. I think you make a very good point. And I don't

          6  think bluntly it's just for folks who happen to come

          7  recently from other countries. I think for a lot of

          8  people would look at and an instant thought in their

          9  mind is sort of large scale human rights issues and

         10  it's not abundantly clear. I don't know if you open

         11  a phone book or if you go on the internet how easy

         12  and quick it is to figure it out. 311 is obviously a

         13  helpful resource. But I think there would be

         14  actually a lot of interest in the Council in

         15  supporting you if you sought to change or amend the

         16  name to say anti- discrimination or something that

         17  helps point people in that direction.

         18                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: No, I think

         19  you're right. I mean, when we came to New York and I

         20  had actually experienced some discrimination, I

         21  didn't know there was a Human Rights Commission. I

         22  knew there was a Civil Rights and I went there.

         23  You're right. I would like to have that discussion

         24  so that we could come up with an appropriate name.

         25  But the reason I said the ethnic and immigrant
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          2  community is only because they were the ones who

          3  actually brought to that my attention.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Clearly.

          5                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: They said,

          6  human rights. We thought this was for my country.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: That stands to

          8  reason.

          9                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: It's

         10  understandable. Once we explain it, for instance,

         11  when we were meeting with a lot of the ethnic press

         12  this morning and they didn't even understand it.

         13  These are the people who write about what's going

         14  on. I do think there is a name concern. That might

         15  be something worthy. But you know again, this is a

         16  Commission that for almost 20 years didn't have life

         17  in it. There was a back log. For people to go to

         18  Federal and State court, we're turning it around.

         19  But we've only been here now for three years and

         20  we're working diligently. I mean that's not to say

         21  that we can't do more. It's alive now and well and

         22  people are receiving judgments within a year. We

         23  turn this real estate case around in three months.

         24  And the man got a $15,000 check.

         25                 We've actually had fines levied
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          2  against people, $55,000 worth of fines and we've

          3  gotten the checks. Never in the history of this

          4  Commission has anyone, they've levied them, but they

          5  never got the money. We don't close it out until we

          6  get the check. That's something different. But our

          7  concern is always for the complainant and we are

          8  more interested in making sure they get the money

          9  than the City coffers necessarily. It's $10,000 for

         10  them and $10,000 for the City, I'd rather them get

         11  the $20,000 if that's what we're talking about. And

         12  that's our mind set on it, quite honestly. But we

         13  try to levy fines against everyone that we can and

         14  collect the money. It's three years and it's moving

         15  slowing. But I really think that by the end of next

         16  year, having had maybe four -- you'll be able to see

         17  that people are starting to turn to us a lot more.

         18                 I think the Siek case is a great

         19  example of how we can work together with the private

         20  bar and try to come up with two different

         21  strategies. The strategy was to let us move forward

         22  and go as quickly as we can. And then the other side

         23  said, well we'll inundate them with motions on the

         24  Federal side to slow it up a bit so that they could

         25  see what happens. That's what we've been trying to
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          2  do. It's moving quicker. But again, I think schools,

          3  I think parents, that's really a way to go in terms

          4  of educating them.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: You know, I

          6  always seek common ground even when there are some

          7  differences of approach or philosophy. I think a

          8  crucial part of the common ground here is the

          9  appreciation that we're looking for the most

         10  expansive and aggressive approach possible. That's

         11  what people on this Committee believe in. That's

         12  also something I hope any oversight entity would

         13  think in terms of in any level of government. What

         14  Deputy Commissioner Melman was saying in terms of

         15  the example in the Siek case, I think is very

         16  consistent with a lot of the thinking that we have

         17  who support this legislation and so again, I say

         18  there is some real common ground there.

         19                 We want to make to sure that whatever

         20  the efficiencies in State or Federal law that we're

         21  looking for the most creative and aggressive

         22  approach and that's a great example where that was

         23  achieved. By the way, again as a layman, I can

         24  understand exactly the dynamics that at one point in

         25  time led to a Supreme Court decision that was more
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          2  restrictive. That are not operative in this day in

          3  age in New York City with our uniform services and

          4  why you are exactly right to push the envelope

          5  there. I think that's what we're seeking and I'm

          6  glad that's what you have been doing.

          7                 I'll just wrap it around and say that

          8  the history of the Commission, if I understand it

          9  correctly, it has evolved over time and originally

         10  more focused on intergroup relations and over time

         11  being more focused on fighting discrimination. But

         12  without some of the tools it could have had and now

         13  thankfully there are more tools. But in the

         14  meantime, I think it would be fair to say our

         15  society has developed in such a way where the avenue

         16  of going to court is a lot more difficult and a lot

         17  less conducive than it might have been at some point

         18  in time and the backlogs are much greater; the costs

         19  are much higher. In a way, as time has passed, the

         20  need for a more aggressive and available Human

         21  Rights Commission or anti- discrimination mechanism

         22  has grown.

         23                 I think we're simply at a position

         24  where we want to work with you to change with the

         25  times and continue to develop the role so that it
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          2  becomes common place in this City as someone who has

          3  a complaint, knows where to go, gets quick and

          4  effective service and has an outlet that they can

          5  practically afford and deal with such as

          6  unfortunately is often not the case in the court

          7  system. That we as much as possible to seamless

          8  process. That's the goal that we have.

          9                 We look forward to working with you

         10  further on this legislation. As is our habit, we

         11  will probably send you some follow up questions in

         12  writing. We appreciate your responses. And we will

         13  continue to discuss this as we move forward the

         14  legislative process. Thank you very much for your

         15  time. Next panel, we have four people. Alexander

         16  Wood, Edith Prentiss, John Herrion and Sarah

         17  Alvarez. I welcome all of you. I know Alexander well

         18  and admire his work. Would you like to start?

         19                 MR. WOOD: Good morning and thank you

         20  for holding this hearing. It's nice to see Council

         21  Members Brewer and Palma who are both on the

         22  Disability Services Committee. My name is Alexander

         23  Wood. I'm the Executive Director of the Disabilities

         24  Network of New York City.

         25                 The Disabilities Network is a
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          2  Citywide coalition of individuals, consumer advocacy

          3  groups and non- profit service providers working to

          4  represent people with physical disabilities, to work

          5  on systems advocacy and promote full participation

          6  of people with physical disabilities in the life of

          7  the City by strengthening appropriate Citywide

          8  policies. I'm here to testify today in favor in

          9  Intro 22. This bill will restore New York City to

         10  the forefront of civil rights leadership and stop

         11  the erosion of civil rights protections brought on

         12  by increasingly conservative judges.

         13                 I want to focus for a moment on three

         14  of the ways that Intro 22 will impact positively on

         15  people with disabilities. First, the City Human

         16  Rights Law currently requires that housing providers

         17  make and pay for all reasonable accommodations that

         18  do not cause them an undue hardship. These include

         19  interior modifications, common area modifications

         20  and changes in building policies (like letting the

         21  friend of a tenant use the laundry room on the

         22  tenant's behalf where the tenant is unable to do

         23  so). We want to make sure that cutbacks in our right

         24  to modifications are not achieved through the back

         25  door by importing narrow interpretations of Federal
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          2  law into the City Human Rights Law.

          3                 Second, we also want to make sure

          4  that when people are not able to work because of a

          5  disability, reasonable accommodations can be made.

          6  When somebody is able to afford the rent with

          7  disability, pension or other unearned income, they

          8  should be allowed to do even if the landlord usually

          9  requires earned income. Third, I want to speak to

         10  the question of civil penalties that are provided

         11  for in the law. This concerns people with

         12  disabilities because the denial of access and

         13  accommodation has too frequently been considered not

         14  to be a real injury.

         15                 In fact, these are very real

         16  injuries. And landlords and employers and providers

         17  of public accommodations have had more than a dozen

         18  years to learn their obligations. As important as it

         19  is for accommodations to be made by those accused of

         20  violating the law, it is also important for there to

         21  be penalties imposed so that there is a serious

         22  incentive to obey the law in the first place. Even a

         23  maximum penalty of $250,000 is not sufficient to

         24  punish the largest corporations in New York for the

         25  most egregious instances of discrimination. In
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          2  addition, neither existing law nor this bill imposes

          3  minimum penalties for violations. The lack of

          4  minimums sends the wrong signal and such minimums

          5  should be established.

          6                 Increasing civil rights protections

          7  is one area where the Council can act without

          8  getting permission from Albany or funding from

          9  Washington. I urge the Committee and the City

         10  Council as a whole to use this opportunity to do the

         11  right thing and the progressive thing and pass this

         12  important legislation. It will provide both

         13  substantive help in the struggle for civil rights

         14  and it will pose a stark contrast with those who

         15  would continue to allow civil rights protections to

         16  be cut back. Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I just want to

         18  say, Alexander, in a generic way, I support anything

         19  that means we don't have to get permission from

         20  Albany. I'm getting kind of sick of that process.

         21  Thank you. Who would like to go next?

         22                 MS. PRENTISS: Hello. My name is Edith

         23  Prentiss. I would like to thank the Committee again

         24  for inviting us to speak. I'm speaking on behalf of

         25  DIA. We would like to show our support for Intro 22.
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          2  DIA is a civil rights organization committed to

          3  ending discrimination against the disabled.

          4                 Founded in 1970, DIA fights to

          5  eliminate the barriers that prevent us from enjoying

          6  equality. We seek to raise consciousness among

          7  people with or without disabilities concerning

          8  ableism, paternalism and derogatory attitudes as

          9  well as laws and customs that oppose us from full

         10  participation in society. We look to enact and

         11  enforce effective legislation to promote our ability

         12  to live independently.

         13                 For any law to be effective, it must

         14  have teeth. This is true for civil rights laws as

         15  any other. The problem has been a combination of

         16  lack of enforcement, lack of deterrent, and judges

         17  hostile to civil rights. By passing Intro 22, the

         18  Council has the opportunity to make a substantive

         19  contribution to redeem the promise of New York

         20  City's Human Rights Law. No one is stopping the

         21  Council from doing this. Every member of this

         22  Committee and as we heard earlier, 37 members of the

         23  Council are co- sponsors of this bill. With the

         24  exercise of leadership, there is simply no reason

         25  why this measure should not become law promptly. And
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          2  the need is great. Our need is great.

          3                 We're happy, for example, that the

          4  Human Rights Commission does work in seeking

          5  accommodations for people with disabilities. But

          6  only 144 such accommodations were reported in the

          7  latest Mayor's Management Report for an entire year,

          8  in a City where hundreds of thousands of housing

          9  units and commercial establishments continue to have

         10  barriers to accessibility. No agency is going to be

         11  able to go after all violators of the law. It is

         12  only if people understand that there are

         13  consequences for violating the law that more

         14  landlords and businesses will voluntarily make the

         15  accommodations that are necessary. Or hopefully have

         16  situations where accommodations are not needed.

         17                 Unfortunately, the Human Rights

         18  Commission does not think that the lack of access is

         19  the kind of injury that deserves compensatory

         20  damages and doesn't seek them. Nor does the

         21  Commission seek civil penalties which as we heard

         22  earlier to accrue to the City. I think there would

         23  be a great revenue stream. Intro 22 would raise the

         24  caps on civil penalties so that penalties against a

         25  large and wealthy defendant should be enough to send
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          2  a real message. My favorite is trying to get into

          3  Time Warner Building which has the heaviest doors

          4  known to modern man and no buttons that

          5  automatically open doors. Now excuse me, Time

          6  Warner, new building, could we have a bigger --

          7  Donald Trump maybe and we all know about the Trump

          8  issue. That's a bigger joke.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I think that we

         10  could also say that Time Warner could afford the

         11  button.

         12                 MS. PRENTISS: Really, for what

         13  they're charging us for cable and AOL. I definitely

         14  think they could pay for the button. I'll pay for

         15  the button. Unfortunately, the Human Rights

         16  Commission doesn't think -- I'm sorry. We need to be

         17  able to attract lawyers to bring these cases in

         18  court. Ideally, many of these cases could be settled

         19  quickly with required accommodations being made.

         20  But, under a recent Supreme Court decision,

         21  attorneys' fees under Federal law are available only

         22  for cases that go to trial. Therefore, if an

         23  accommodation is reached, there is no opportunity

         24  for legal fees. Intro 22 would make clear that such

         25  fees are available under City Human Rights Law and

                                                            108

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  we think the capacity for bring these suits and

          3  force these changes would be increased greatly.

          4                 Another problem is landlords who as

          5  Alexander stated, do not want to accept tenants who

          6  have what landlords consider non- traditional means

          7  of paying their rent. Every apartment I have ever

          8  had in New York City, my parents were guarantor's or

          9  co- signatures on because in the opinion of

         10  landlord, I could not (and this was even when I was

         11  working). My budget was really tight. But I paid my

         12  rent. Landlords need to be more open to situations

         13  like that. This is also a situation that greatly

         14  impacts many seniors as well. People who don't have

         15  incomes in New York City to support themselves in

         16  the way which landlords believe. I think it is a

         17  very important issue.

         18                 The Civil Human Rights Law offers a

         19  means independent of Federal law by which to

         20  vindicate the rights of qualified applicants. But it

         21  will only work if the law is amended, as is proposed

         22  by Intro 22, to require courts to interpret the

         23  local law independent of Federal law with a view

         24  towards liberally interpreting the statute to

         25  accompany its broad objectives. Intro 22 is designed
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          2  to make sure that we have the tools necessary to

          3  wage an effective fight against discrimination. It

          4  should be passed without delay.

          5                 My favorite, I wish they were here

          6  still to hear this, but my favorite Human Rights

          7  Commission issue is problems getting into that

          8  building. Where the doors are locked despite the

          9  requirement that the door not have someone come and

         10  unlock the door for you. And secondly, when you get

         11  up to their floor, there are phones that one has to

         12  use to speak to the person behind the lock glass

         13  doors. Unfortunately, the phone is parked so far up

         14  on the wall that you can't reach it. I think this is

         15  an explanation of the civil rights department view

         16  of disability issues that is very low on their scale

         17  or just no where on their radar. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you. And

         19  just a quick point, we've raised this issue before

         20  to the Commission. I don't think we've necessary

         21  gotten a clear enough response. So we're just going

         22  to write a letter from the Committee, send it over

         23  tomorrow saying, two specific things. You mean the

         24  door at the street level?

         25                 MS. PRENTISS: The door at the street

                                                            110

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  level, number one.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: The front door

          4  and the entry door on their floor where the phone

          5  is.

          6                 MS. PRENTISS: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: And just get

          8  them to respond in writing with hopefully --

          9                 MS. PRENTISS: What does it take to

         10  drop a phone 12 inches.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Right.

         12  Hopefully with an easy plan to resolve it.

         13                 MS. PRENTISS: Right. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you.

         15  Please go ahead.

         16                 MR. HERRION: Chairman DeBlasio and

         17  members of the City Council, I want to thank you for

         18  the opportunity to be here today. My name is John

         19  Herrion. I'm an attorney with the United Spinal

         20  Association which was previously known as the

         21  Eastern Paralyzed Veterans Association. We've done a

         22  lot of work around the City Human Rights Law

         23  specifically with regard to housing discrimination

         24  for people with disabilities. We've actually had a

         25  very successful working relationship with the City
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          2  Human Rights Commissions in prosecuting cases that

          3  involve getting modifications to homes in order to

          4  allow persons with disabilities or persons in

          5  wheelchairs to use and access and enjoy their homes.

          6                 I think the construction provision in

          7  Intro 22 which we support gets exactly to the issue

          8  that Chairman DeBlasio was mentioning earlier with

          9  the Commission. That it provides very clearly to a

         10  Federal or State judge as well as to other attorneys

         11  and practitioners who look to the Human Rights Law

         12  that the provisions of the Human Rights Law to be

         13  construed independently from similar provisions

         14  under State or Federal law. This is very important

         15  with regard to housing because the City has carved

         16  itself out and has distinguished itself in providing

         17  rights to people with disabilities by obligating the

         18  landlord of the housing provider to provide

         19  modifications when those modifications are

         20  reasonable and don't create undue financial burdens

         21  on the housing provider or the landlord.

         22                 If you look at the State or the

         23  Federal law, those laws place the obligation on the

         24  individual with the disability to pay for those

         25  modifications. So if somebody calls my office from
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          2  Long Island or West Chester, the first question I

          3  have to ask is can you afford to pay for the ramp or

          4  the wheelchair lift. Where if I get a call from the

          5  Bronx or Brooklyn, I know that we can rely on the

          6  City Human Rights Law to get the landlord to provide

          7  for reasonable modifications to allow that person to

          8  get in and out of their home. I think that

          9  construction provision answers that question. It

         10  will provide a lot of help for Federal or State

         11  judge or practitioner to see that the City law is to

         12  be looked at separately from these other guidelines

         13  that are established Federal and State wide.

         14                 I would also like to emphasize that

         15  we have had a successful working relationship with

         16  the Commission with regards to housing

         17  discrimination. But I would agree with colleague

         18  over here that that phone needs to be lowered.

         19  Whenever an individual with a wheelchair comes in,

         20  it just doesn't get the job done. Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you very

         23  much. Musical chairs here for a moment. Welcome.

         24                 MS. ALVAREZ: Thank you. Thank you for

         25  having me here. I want to thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to testify. My name is Sarah Alvarez and

          3  I am a law graduate on staff at New York Lawyers for

          4  the Public Interest. We are a non- profit, civil

          5  rights law firm and we practice in three areas:

          6  Disability rights, environmental justice and access

          7  to health care. I work in the access to health care

          8  group. In the access to health care group, we deal

          9  with issues of racial and national origin

         10  discrimination within the health care system.

         11                 New York Lawyers supports Intro 22 in

         12  its entirety. But what I wanted to talk about today

         13  was specifically Section 8- 130 and how that will

         14  clarify the Human Rights Law. In its current form,

         15  Section 8- 130 states only that "the provisions of

         16  this chapter shall be construed liberally" and as

         17  people have been speaking about today, liberal

         18  construction of the Human Rights Law is extremely

         19  important because of what is happening on the

         20  Federal level.

         21                 We have a client, that demonstrates

         22  that individuals cannot always count on liberal

         23  construction at the City level and how important it

         24  is to clarify what liberal construction means. This

         25  client came to us, he is not a native English
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          2  speaker and he has limited English language skills.

          3  He was referred to a specialist for treatment of

          4  migraine headaches. When the specialist discovered

          5  that he didn't have proficient English skills, he

          6  was chastised by the doctor. The referring physician

          7  was called in front of our client and told never

          8  again to send somebody to him that didn't speak

          9  English. Then our client was kicked out of the

         10  doctor's office without treatment.

         11                 We consider what happen to this

         12  client to be national origin discrimination. Even

         13  though the Federal law is being scaled back and is

         14  being narrowed, it is still true that at the Federal

         15  level, the definition of national origin

         16  discrimination includes discrimination based on

         17  somebody's ability to speak English. Our client

         18  actually chose to file a complaint at the City

         19  level, however, and filed a complaint with the City

         20  Human Rights Commission. The Commission adopted a

         21  view of national origin discrimination that is even

         22  more narrower than the Federal law and they don't

         23  consider discrimination based on ability to speak

         24  English to be national origin discrimination.

         25                 Our client believed that he could
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          2  rely on a City construction that would be at least

          3  as generous as the Federal law. But Section 8- 130

          4  will make it clear that New Yorkers can rely on a

          5  City construction that will be at least as generous

          6  as Federal and State Law. So Section 8- 130 is very

          7  careful in stating that Federal and State law be

          8  used as a floor for what the interpretation should

          9  be. We think this is very important. So that in the

         10  future, people like our client are not going to have

         11  the same experiences at the Commission.

         12                 At the same time, as the progression

         13  in the Federal courts may be to continue to narrow

         14  and constrain civil rights, we think it's also very

         15  important that this language that's in Section 8-

         16  130 says that the Federal and State law should be

         17  used as a floor, but never as a ceiling. So that

         18  what is going on in the Federal courts is not

         19  tracked at the City level. Again, we think that this

         20  concept of the Federal and State law being a floor,

         21  but not a ceiling is very important and we think

         22  that Section 8- 130 in really defining what a

         23  liberal construction of the law is, is extremely

         24  important and will help people like our client.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN DEBLASIO: Thank you very

          3  much. Let's see if there is any questions. No. Okay.

          4  I thank this panel very much. Very helpful testimony

          5  and we look forward to working with you as the

          6  legislation progresses. I think we have one more

          7  panel. I'm going to call names and if people are

          8  here, come to the front and we'll see if it's one

          9  panel or two panels. Tom Smith, are you still here?

         10  I guess not. Lynn Polletta is here; Kevin Sullivan,

         11  Bob Stroup, I hope I'm saying that right, Stroup,

         12  I'm sorry. That was name discrimination. And we have

         13  Thomas Small and Frieda Zames if they are here.

         14  Okay. Thank you. Everyone make yourselves

         15  comfortable. I've known Lynn a long time, so I'm

         16  going to ask him to go first.

         17                 MR. POLLETTA: Good morning. Thank

         18  you. I'm going to just abbreviated my remarks. Good

         19  morning, Chairman DeBlasio and members of the

         20  General Welfare Committee. My name is Leonard

         21  Polletta, I'm the Assistant General Counsel with

         22  District Council 37. I'm appearing here this morning

         23  on behalf of the union which many know and hopefully

         24  everybody knows is actually the largest municipal

         25  employees union in the country. We represent
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          2  approximately 121,000 members and I'm here this

          3  morning on behalf of the Counsel to say that we

          4  strongly support Intro 22 and actively ask that the

          5  Committee pass this bill and send it to the Council

          6  for a vote.

          7                 The one aspect that I'd like to

          8  address this afternoon is the provision to restore

          9  protection against retaliation. This is not the

         10  first time that the Council has had to grapple with

         11  the problem of courts not understanding that all

         12  retaliation is harmful to the public's interest.

         13  Protection against retaliation is a crucial

         14  ingredient for civil rights enforcement to be an

         15  effective tool for the eradication of

         16  discrimination. Insuring that victims of

         17  discrimination, and others who actively oppose it,

         18  are protected when they come forward is central to

         19  any civil rights law. After all, effective exercise

         20  of civil rights depends upon the willingness of

         21  people to stand up for themselves and others in

         22  order to guarantee that we all enjoy the benefits of

         23  society where discrimination has no place. People

         24  too frightened to take advantage of their civil

         25  rights cannot protect them.
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          2                 The Council in 1991 expanded

          3  protection against retaliation to prohibit covered

          4  entities from retaliating in any manner under

          5  Section 8- 107(7). Unfortunately, the courts in New

          6  York have narrowly construed that phrase to limit

          7  its application. The EEOC, a body with a long

          8  history of enforcement of the nation's civil rights

          9  laws, recognizes that liability for retaliation is a

         10  separate question from how much an individual

         11  complainant has been damaged. The EEOC Compliance

         12  Manual explains why any activity reasonably likely

         13  to deter protected activity must be considered

         14  illegal.

         15                 In the union, we have had situations

         16  where workers who were the victims of discrimination

         17  or outspoken opponents of discrimination have been

         18  subjected to transfers, lower evaluations,

         19  reassignments and other discriminatory treatment in

         20  retaliation for their activity. These workers are

         21  not retaliated against in the classic way. They're

         22  not fired or demoted. Instead, the employee is

         23  transferred to another borough, experiences a longer

         24  commute, dislocation from their co- workers and loss

         25  of familiar people and surroundings as punishment.
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          2  The employer is sending a clear message and signal

          3  to these employees of their disapproval. And the co-

          4  workers who witness this learn a lesson; that if you

          5  complain, you'll be punished. That's it better to go

          6  along to get along.

          7                 If a worker is able to prove that the

          8  transfer or lower evaluation was imposed because he

          9  or she complained about discrimination, the employer

         10  should be found guilty of retaliation and an

         11  effective remedy, tailored to the circumstances of

         12  the case, should be available; whether it's

         13  injunctive relief or damages. Intro 22 adopts the

         14  appropriate balance to allow victims of retaliation

         15  to secure justice while at the same time avoiding

         16  litigation over petty slights and trivial

         17  annoyances. With Intro 22, the purposes of the anti-

         18  retaliation provision will be enhanced to reach

         19  those situations that involve real retaliation which

         20  are now being ignored by the courts. I think for us

         21  that's a very important concern.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you very

         23  much, Lynn. Before the next witness, I just want to

         24  do some housekeeping here that the Asian American

         25  Legal Defense Education Fund had intended to provide
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          2  in person testimony and unfortunately they were not

          3  able to. They provided written testimony which will

          4  go into the record and we thank them for it. Okay,

          5  who would like to go next. Choose among yourselves

          6  or I'll call out a name.

          7                 MS. ZAMES: I'm not going to be very

          8  long because I didn't really prepare testimony. I'm

          9  Dr. Frieda Zames. And I just wanted to support my

         10  colleagues, Alexander Wood and Edith Prentiss. I am

         11  a Board Member of Disabled in Action and of the

         12  DNYC. But my group, especially Disabled in Action.

         13  I've been involved in that group for over 30 years

         14  and I just want to make the point that it's a

         15  membership group, includes people with all types of

         16  disabilities.

         17                 One of the points I wanted to make

         18  that came up today is that I am living as a

         19  heterogeneous with a partner for over 30 years. I'm

         20  not registered -- what is that called? I live in a

         21  Mitchell-Lama co-op and if I should die, I would

         22  want my partner to get the apartment. That might be

         23  an issue that someone brought up that one of the --

         24  but I think there are other possibilities that are

         25  like that. I just want to make one more point that
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          2  is a pet peeve of mine. And that's when people put

          3  up new buildings and they put in lifts rather than

          4  ramps, now the problem with lifts they can break

          5  down. Even when they don't break down, people often

          6  don't know where the key is. There is a problem

          7  waiting out in the rain or the snow or the cold.

          8                 In fact, we are suing Trump at

          9  Columbus Circle because he has these two beautiful

         10  lifts that often don't work and we can't handle

         11  independently. With one thing I think the ADA

         12  requires that you be able to have independent

         13  access. So that's an example of  -- and there is

         14  plenty of room there for a ramp. But for some reason

         15  they never made a ramp. That's one of my really pet

         16  peeves. I think where possible --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Which building

         18  do you mean? Gail Brewer is going to get on because

         19  it is her district. Which building do you mean?

         20                 MS. ZAMES: It's the one in Columbus

         21  Circle.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: It's a big

         23  complex.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The hotel, the

         25  hotel. I've got it. And I'll take care of the doors
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          2  at Time Warner. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: She's on it.

          4                 MS. ZAMES: Great.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: She's on it.

          6                 MS. ZAMES: By the way, we have a

          7  lawsuit. Maybe you can take care of it and we

          8  wouldn't have to -- I think it's an ADA thing that

          9  you need independent access. It might be a City. I'm

         10  not sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: You got your

         12  agent right here.

         13                 MS. ZAMES: Okay. I'm glad I

         14  testified. I wasn't going to. Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you so

         16  much.

         17                 MR. SULLIVAN: Good afternoon. I'll

         18  try and be brief in my remarks. I know that time is

         19  getting late.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Get closer to

         21  the microphone, please.

         22                 MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman

         23  and members of the City Council. My name is Kevin

         24  Sullivan. I am the Advocacy Director for Habitat for

         25  Humanity in New York City. Habitat for Humanity is a
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          2  faith based housing organization that is committed

          3  to the elimination of substandard housing in all of

          4  its forms here in New York City and around the

          5  world.

          6                 Habitat is among the largest not-

          7  for- profit housing developers in the United States

          8  with affiliates in all 50 states and in 100

          9  countries around the world. Just over 20 years ago,

         10  then former President Jimmy Carter visited an

         11  abandoned tenement building on the lower east side

         12  with a group of what were referred to then as

         13  homesteaders of the Habitat for Humanity local

         14  affiliate. Carter looked down from the roof of the

         15  scarred building and saw two juxtapose images that

         16  seized his conscious and compelled him to moral

         17  action. He saw a woman cooking a meal over a gas

         18  burner amid the scavenge debris of a vacant lot that

         19  she called home. Set against this image was a sky

         20  line of vast wealth and prosperity which rose up

         21  mere blocks from this vacant lot, but worlds apart

         22  from the moral common ground that holds our City

         23  together.

         24                 I am here today to honor Carter's

         25  commitment from that day forward to champion
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          2  Habitat's cause of decent and affordable housing and

          3  to represent the many families that we serve that

          4  like that woman on the lower east side deserve a

          5  fair share in the prosperity and justice of our

          6  great City. We in the Habitat movement have often

          7  found that it is easier to build with bricks and

          8  mortar than it is to build a sense a common humanity

          9  that will ensure that all people have a right to

         10  fair and decent housing. But the struggle involves

         11  building both. We must work for both charity and

         12  justice or we will have neither.

         13                 We have tried in our advocacy efforts

         14  here in New York City to build common ground for

         15  housing justice for all New Yorkers. Our five point

         16  housing covenant identifies housing discrimination

         17  as an ongoing challenge to fulfilling the promise of

         18  an equitable housing policy. We strongly endorse the

         19  principals and provisions of Intro 22, the local

         20  Civil Rights Restoration Act as a means of

         21  demonstrating the City's commitment to the

         22  preservation of civil rights that takes practical

         23  and concrete steps towards fair housing and civil

         24  rights enforcement.

         25                 In our screening of thousands of
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          2  applicants that apply for the few dozen homes that

          3  we build each year, we see heart rending stories of

          4  hardships for families seeking safe and affordable

          5  housing. It is hard enough to find affordable

          6  housing in this City without being faced with the

          7  additional barriers of ignorance and bigotry. Being

          8  a family with children is one of those barriers

          9  because landlords may say, we do not want children.

         10  Some may do so because they do not want to install

         11  window guards. Some may do so because they do not

         12  want to lead abatement. Some may do so just because

         13  they do not want children around.

         14                 If you are a working class family and

         15  find the door slammed in your face because the

         16  landlord doesn't want children in residence, you

         17  theoretically have rights. Such discrimination is

         18  already illegal under the Human Rights Law. But you

         19  don't have the money to hire a lawyer or to bring a

         20  full blown case to court. That is why you need the

         21  administrative process to work. Intro 22 imposes the

         22  very basic requirement that investigations by the

         23  Human Rights Commission be thorough. The need for

         24  thorough investigation should not be controversial.

         25  Likewise, the idea of making attorney's fees
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          2  available to those who win at the administrative

          3  level is common sense. The Human Rights Commission

          4  does not represent a complainant. If a complainant

          5  wants representation, that complainant needs a

          6  lawyer. The availability of attorney's fees would

          7  make it easier to attract attorneys for cases that

          8  may not involve big dollar matters.

          9                 This is an area where New York City

         10  Human Rights Law lags behind other anti-

         11  discrimination law. If you prevail on a housing

         12  discrimination complaint heard by HUD, attorney's

         13  fees are available. If you win an employment

         14  discrimination complaint in court after having

         15  gotten a reasonable cause determination from EEOC,

         16  attorney's fees are available. Even at the State

         17  division, attorney's fees are available in housing

         18  discrimination cases.

         19                 The marital status provision of Intro

         20  22 is another that makes just basic common sense. If

         21  a landlord asked two people who are going to share

         22  an apartment, are you married? The landlord isn't

         23  interested in whether they each check the married or

         24  unmarried box on a form, but whether they are

         25  married to each other. The City made a policy
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          2  decision that individuals and couples should not be

          3  discriminated against because they are unmarried.

          4  But because of court decisions that failed to

          5  recognize this policy, Intro 22 makes it clear that

          6  the marital status provision of the law protects

          7  both individuals and couples.

          8                 Discrimination remains a scourge in

          9  New York City and we all have a role to play in

         10  combatting it. Habitat works with many faith

         11  communities. And one of our basic principals is the

         12  principal of shared responsibility and moral common

         13  ground. We need to see how each of us can lift and

         14  be lifted by others so that we all benefit. I urge

         15  you to pass Intro 22 to build common ground for a

         16  fair and just City for all New Yorkers. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you very

         18  much. Bob?

         19                 MR. STROUP: Thank you. I appreciate

         20  the opportunity to speak here. I represent the New

         21  York Chapter of the National Employment Lawyers'

         22  Association. A national organization of attorneys

         23  who devote the bulk of their time litigating

         24  employment discrimination claims. I have submitted

         25  written remarks and I will leave those for the
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          2  written record. I want to respond briefly to a few

          3  points made by Commission representatives if I

          4  might.

          5                 Our members regularly see clients and

          6  regularly turn clients away for two primary reasons,

          7  I think. Or at least two primary reasons important

          8  for what we're talking about here today. One, we

          9  turn clients away because there is no effective

         10  Federal remedy for the discrimination that's

         11  involved. There is no effective Federal remedy

         12  because of procedural barriers or evidentiary rules

         13  that affectively block the court house door or if

         14  not block the court house door altogether, at least

         15  preclude reasonable access to a jury trial on the

         16  issue at hand.

         17                 A second reason why our members turn

         18  prospective clients away more often than we would

         19  like is the expense involved in Federal litigation

         20  with clients unable to bear the cost and our members

         21  themselves many times not able to bear the risk of

         22  the substantial Federal litigation. So the

         23  provisions that you have before you in this proposed

         24  legislation, we heartily support. Particularly, well

         25  I don't want to focus, but in terms of focusing and
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          2  comments here today, I think that the attorney's

          3  fees issue deal with a significant resource issue

          4  that is fundamental to the litigation of anti-

          5  discrimination laws. Both at the Federal level, the

          6  State and the City level. Governmental agencies do

          7  not have the resources necessary to enforce these

          8  laws the way other laws are enforced.

          9                 From the beginning of the Federal era

         10  with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Federal

         11  government has relied on the concept of private

         12  attorney generals to enforce civil rights laws and

         13  the City of New York has to do the same with its

         14  law. It must rely on private attorney's general,

         15  that is private citizens with their attorneys,

         16  private attorneys representing them to assure that

         17  the anti- discrimination laws are enforced. Support

         18  for the administrative process through the

         19  availability of fees at the administrative process

         20  provides another avenue for claimants to obtain

         21  relief from discriminatory acts when the Federal

         22  court remedy is a much more expensive remedy and

         23  sometimes a less effective one.

         24                 I want also to make one passing

         25  comment about the fact that the majority of cases
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          2  that the City agency handles are; that is the City

          3  Human Rights Agency has, involves City agencies. The

          4  experience of our members frankly is that the City

          5  agencies are amongst the most recalcitrant employers

          6  that we confront in our enforcement of anti-

          7  discrimination laws. If the availability of

          8  attorney's fees at the administrative level, assist

          9  the City of New York, in riding itself of

         10  discrimination by its own agencies, we would

         11  heartily applaud that. We think that the fact the

         12  Human Rights Agency is the one who is dealing

         13  directly at a ground level with City agencies and

         14  their own discrimination is further reason to bring

         15  private attorneys in to assist that process and make

         16  sure it is as effective as possible.

         17                 My final small point is in terms of

         18  your question earlier about whether the language

         19  included in this provision regarding intent that

         20  this law be interpreted distinctly from Federal and

         21  State law. I've been in front of a number of Federal

         22  court judges in the southern and eastern district

         23  where we brought both State, City and Federal law

         24  claims. The Federal judges in each of those

         25  instances was certainly willing to entertain
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          2  differences between the individual laws that we were

          3  bringing our claim on and I can assure you that in

          4  the majority of instances that I would expect to

          5  encounter in Federal court, this provision would be

          6  very helpful to us. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Well, I want to

          8  thank you. I want to thank everyone for your

          9  testimony today. I appreciate and that's a very good

         10  note to end on you've offered. I appreciate the

         11  clarity of that point. I also really appreciate the

         12  vividness of the point about the private attorney's

         13  general and that the concept of adding to our

         14  capacity in that fashion and obviously I did not

         15  feel that my dialogue with the Commissioner shedded

         16  light on that situation. But thank you, thanks to

         17  everyone. It was extremely helpful testimony and we

         18  look forward to continuing to work together on this

         19  legislation. Thank you. This meeting of the General

         20  Welfare Committee is adjourned.

         21                 (Meeting adjourned)

         22                 (Following written testimony was read

         23  into the record)

         24  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

             Asian American Legal Defense and Education Fund

         25
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          2                 The Asian American Legal Defense and

          3  Education Fund ("AALDEF"), founded in 1974, is a

          4  non- profit organization based in New York City.

          5  AALDEF defends the civil rights of Asian Americans

          6  nationwide through the prosecution of lawsuits,

          7  legal advocacy and dissemination of public

          8  information. AALDEF endorses Intro 22 and urges its

          9  quick passage by the New York City Council.

         10                 The New York City Human Rights Law

         11  has long been regarded by the civil rights community

         12  as one the New York City Council's most important

         13  achievements. It provides rights and remedies that

         14  are necessary to insure that City residents are free

         15  from discrimination in its many forms.

         16                 However, despite the Council's

         17  efforts, the Human Rights Law over the years has

         18  been cut back by restrictive court rulings. Many of

         19  these decisions have relied on similar restrictive

         20  readings of the federal law by the United States

         21  Supreme Court and other federal courts. Intro 22

         22  frees the interpretation of the Human Rights Law

         23  from these restrictive and bad precedents. It allows

         24  the law to stand on its own and receive the

         25  interpretation that was intended by City Counsel
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          2  when the law was passed.

          3                 The Asian American population in this

          4  City continues its rapid growth. At the same time,

          5  Asian Americans are faced with a growing amount of

          6  discrimination, particularly immigrants from South

          7  Asia. The City Human Rights Law can provide an

          8  important legal means for fighting back against this

          9  discrimination. Intro 22 makes this Law even more

         10  effective in that fight. The Asian American Legal

         11  Defense and Education Fund urges that this Committee

         12  and the City Council as a whole pass this proposed

         13  legislation.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)
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